Public Document Pack

Democratic Services EPSOM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

Wednesday 4 March 2026 at 7.30 pm
Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall

Online access to this meeting is available on YouTube: Link to online broadcast

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Environment Committee meeting, on
the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Councillor Liz Frost (Chair) Councillor Christine Cleveland
Councillor Alan Williamson (Vice- Councillor Julian Freeman
Chair) Councillor Julie Morris
Councillor Arthur Abdulin Councillor Kieran Persand

Councillor Steve Bridger

Yours sincerely

. .

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel:
01372 732000

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital
that you follow their instructions.

e You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
e Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

e Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and

e Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so.



https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLU1GWtI_OsxUcyTb2u4WGNNV7n-MGYVaZ

Public information

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be available to observe
live using free YouTube software.

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda. A limited number
of seats will be available on a first-come first-served basis in the public gallery at the Town Hall. If you wish
to observe the meeting from the public gallery, please arrive at the Town Hall reception before the start of
the meeting. A member of staff will show you to the seating area. For further information please contact
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000.

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the Council’s
website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes.

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app for iPad,
Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information regarding this
Committee, please email us at democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose confidential
or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended). Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of the below items or should the
Chair agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds of urgency, the Committee may wish to
resolve to exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted.

Questions and statements from the Public

Up to 30 minutes will be set aside for questions and statements from members of the public at meetings of
this Committee. Any member of the public who lives, works, attends an educational establishment or owns
or leases land in the Borough may ask a question or make a statement on matters within the Terms of
Reference of the Committee.

All questions must consist of one question only and cannot consist of multiple parts. Questions and
statements cannot relate to planning or licensing committees matters, the personal affairs of an individual,
or a matter which is exempt from disclosure or confidential under the Local Government Act 1972.
Questions which in the view of the Chair are defamatory, offensive, vexatious or frivolous will not be
accepted. Each question or statement will be limited to 3 minutes in length.

If you wish to ask a question or make a statement at a meeting of this Committee, please contact
Democratic Services at: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

Questions must be received in writing by Democratic Services by noon on the fifth working day before the
day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 25 February 2026.

A written copy of statements must be received by Democratic Services by noon on the working day before
the day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 3 March 2026.

For more information on public speaking protocol at Committees, please see Annex 4.2 of the Epsom &
Ewell Borough Council Operating Framework.

Filming and recording of meetings

The Council allows filming, recording and photography at its public meetings. By entering the Council
Chamber and using the public gallery, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those
images and sound recordings.

Members of the Press who wish to film, record or photograph a public meeting should contact the
Council’'s Communications team prior to the meeting by email at: communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the room whilst filming nor
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography,
additional lighting or any non-handheld devices, including tripods, will not be allowed.


mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/council/about-council/governance/Annex%204-2%20-%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Public%20Speaking_1.pdf
mailto:communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

To take any questions or statements from members of the Public.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or other
registrable or non-registrable interests from Members in respect of any item to
be considered at the meeting.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Committee held on 20 January 2026 (attached) and to authorise the Chair
to sign them.

ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORT COUNCILLOR CHAMPION ANNUAL
STATEMENT 2025/26 (Pages 11 - 16)

This is the annual statement of the Alternative Transport councillor champion.

SURREY RETROFIT STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN (Pages 17 - 104)

This report presents the Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (The Plan) and
seeks its endorsement.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

1

Minutes of the Meeting of the ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE held at the Council
Chamber, Epsom Town Hall on 20 January 2026

PRESENT -
Councillor Liz Frost (Chair); Councillor Alan Williamson (Vice-Chair); Councillors
Arthur Abdulin,  Steve Bridger, Julian Freeman, Julie Morris, Phil Neale and
Kim Spickett

In Attendance:

Councillor Alex Coley
Absent: Councillor Christine Cleveland and Councillor Graham Jones

Officers present:

Sam Whitehead (Streetcare Manager), lan Mawer (Head of Planning, Policy and
Economic Development), Richard Chevalier (Parking Manager), Sue Emmons (Chief
Accountant), Vanessa Newton (Senior Accountant), Jon Sharpe (Interim Assistant
Head of Transport and Waste), Dan Clackson (Democratic Services Officer) and
Angela Guest (Democratic Services Officer)

15 QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
There were no questions or statements from the public.

16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

17 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee confirmed as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting of the
Committee held on 14 October 2025 and the Chair signed them.

18 PLAYGROUND INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE POLICY
The Committee received a report that presented the Playground Inspection and
Maintenance Policy for approval. If approved the policy would replace and supersede
the previous Playground Risk Management Policy originally adopted in 2014 and
renewed in 2018. The policy set out the Council’'s formal approach to the inspection,
maintenance and safety management of all Council owned and maintained playgrounds
and associated facilities.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 5



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment Committee, 20 January 2026 2

19

20

(1) Approve the adoption of the Playground Inspection and Maintenance
Policy

Councillor Julian Freeman arrived at 19.38 pm as this item was being introduced.

PROCUREMENT OF WORKS TO PLAYGROUNDS

The Committee received a report that sought approval to commence a Threshold
3 RFQ procurement process for the works to refurbish and replace playgrounds
and recreation facilities across the borough, fully funded through Strategic
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

Councillor Alex Coley attended the meeting and made a statement of support for
the report.

In response to a Member question the Interim Assistant Head of Service -
Streetcare explained that there were several options on the route to procurement to
consider. She was working with the Procurement Team to decide on the best option but
assured Members it would be timely and would be legal.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(2) Approve the commencement of a tender process for the
refurbishment and replacement of eight playgrounds/recreation
facilities to a total value of £1,060,053, funded by Strategic CIL.

(3) Note a further report would be brought forward following completion
of the procurement process, seeking approval to appoint the
Preferred Supplier for the refurbishment and replacement of the eight
playgrounds/recreation facilities.

(4) Nominate and authorise the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of
Environment Housing and Regeneration, in consultation with the
Director of Corporate Services and Head of Legal Services to take all
necessary steps to bring into effect the recommendations resolved by
this Committee.

HOOK ROAD CAR PARK - SUNDAY

The Committee received a report that sought the agreement of the Committee to
open Hook Road Car Park on a Sunday, subject to the result of a public
consultation.

The Committee considered the following matters:

a) Legality. In response to a Member question about the need for a Traffic
Order when the car park was already in operation the Parking Manager
explained that it was a legal requirement as the opening times would
change. The duty was to advertise and consult for a period of 21 days in
order to take any objections.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 6



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment Committee, 20 January 2026 3

b) Local Plan. A Member stated that the car park was part of the Local Plan
and asked what the process would be for finding alternative parking. The
Parking Manager reported that there was a proposal to bring a long-term
parking strategy to committee but that the Local Government
Reorganisation (LGR) might also have something to say about it.
However, the proposal to this Committee was being put with the
assumption that it may only last for a year or so.

c) Parking costs. A Member asked how officers would differentiate between
leisure centre users and others as the parking charge was different for the
different users. The Parking Manager explained there would be two Ringo
codes but accepted that it would be difficult to monitor and would rely on
users’ integrity. The Parking Manager agreed to consider the Member's
suggestion of having a system in place whereby leisure centre users put
in their car registration, but administrating this would lead to an
administrative cost.

d) In response to a member question regarding promotion of this to shop
staff. It was agreed that the opening would be publicised.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(5) Approve to amend the opening hours of Hook Road Car Park to
include opening on a Sunday from 9am — 5pm subject to the results of
a public consultation.

(6) Nominate and Authorise the Head of Housing & Community and the
Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer to advertise the
amendment to the current Traffic Order, as set out in this report, in
accordance with the statutory process.

And

a) Subject to there being no objections following the statutory
advertisement to make the new Traffic Order, with the amendment
and any additional updates required, and have the same sealed to
implement the current proposal

Or

b) If there are objections following the advertisement to bring back
the representations received to the proposal to the Environment
Committee in March 2026.

21 CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS UPDATE

The Committee received a report providing an annual update on the progress of the
Council’'s Climate Change Action Plan. The Council approved its first Climate Change
Action Plan at its meeting on 20 January 2020, along with a commitment to achieving
net carbon neutral operations by 2035. The first action plan reached the end of its term

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 7



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment Committee, 20 January 2026 4

22

23

on 31 December 2024 and had been succeeded by the Council’'s second Climate
Change Action Plan (2025-2029), adopted by this Committee on 15 October 2024. It
was agreed to review annually.

The Committee considered the following matters:

a) A Member asked in relation to LGR if there had been any discussion with
future neighbouring councils on how the various plans would blend or had
officers looked at the differences in them. The Head of Planning Policy
and Economic Development explained that there was a Surrey-wide
working group that the Environment and Sustainability Project Officer
attends and discussions are taking place.

b) The Chair passed on the thanks of the Committee to the Team for this
huge piece of work.

Following consideration, the Committee unanimously resolved to:

(7) Note the progress made on the delivery of the Council’s second
Climate Change Action Plan over the past year.

REVENUE BUDGET 2026/27

The Committee received a report setting out budget estimates for income and
expenditure for Environment Committee services in 2026/27.

The Committee considered the following matters:

a) A Member asked for further clarification of paragraph 5.5.1 of the risk
management table in relation to the need for extra parking. The Chair
stated that until the Local Plan was adopted it was difficult to predict what
was going to happen in relation to parking sites. The Chief Accountant
explained that the MTFS originally stated £134K extra income from
parking for 2026/27 but following discussion at the car park working group
that had been reduced to £34k as shown in the fees and charges report
on the agenda. Some of the increase in income would come from
increased costs of permits but most was expected to come from increased
volumes. Other car park charges would not increase this year.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved (7 for and 1 against) to:

(8) Recommend the 2026/27 service estimates for approval at the budget
meeting of Full Council in February 2026.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2026/27

The Committee considered a report that summarised the proposed 2026/27 capital
programme and a provisional programme for 2027/28 to 2030/31.

The Committee considered the following matters:

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 8



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Environment Committee, 20 January 2026 5

a) A Member commented that, whilst it was unfortunate that the works at the
Alex Rec Dojo did not proceed, she welcomed the return of the allocated
funding to capital receipts.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved (7 for and 1 against) to:

(9) Submit the capital programme for 2026/27 as identified in section 3 of
this report to the Council for approval on 10 February 2026

(10) Agree that the two schemes detailed in section 4 be removed from the
existing capital programme and the allocated budget returned to the
balance of capital receipts available for funding the 2026/27 capital
programme;

(11) Note the provisional forecast of schemes for the capital programme
for 2027/28 to 2030/31.

24 FEES AND CHARGES 2026/27
The Committee received a report that sought approval of new fees and charges
for which this Committee is responsible and with the new charges being effective
from 1 April 2026.
Following consideration, the Committee resolved (6 for and 2 abstentions) to:

(1) Agree the fees and charges for 2026/27 as set out at Appendices 1
and 2 of the submitted report.

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 8.15 pm

COUNCILLOR LIZ FROST (CHAIR)

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Environment Committee Agenda Iltem 4
4 March 2026

ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORT COUNCILLOR CHAMPION ANNUAL
STATEMENT 2025/26

Head of Service: lan Mawer, Head of Planning Policy and
Economic Development

Report Author lan Mawer

Wards affected: (All Wards);

Urgent Decision? No

Appendices (attached): Appendix 1 — Annual Statement of the

Alternative Transport councillor champion

Summary

To report to the committee the annual statement of the Alternative Transport councillor
champion.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Receive and note the annual statement of the Alternative Transport
councillor champion.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 Section 8.3.1 of Annex 2.1 of the Operating Framework requires councillor
champions to produce an annual statement to the relevant policy
committee. This report presents the annual statement of the Alternative
Transport Councillor Champion to the committee in compliance with that
requirement.

2 Background

2.1  Councillor champions are appointed annually by the Council in
accordance with Annex 2.1 of the Operating Framework, to promote the
cause for which they are a champion.

2.2  Section 8.2 of Annex 2.1 sets out that councillor champions will achieve
this through:

Page 11



Environment Committee Agenda Iltem 4
4 March 2026

2.3

i. Being outward-facing, enthusiastic, and focused on raising the
profile of the area they champion.

i.  Developing in-depth knowledge and understanding of the issue(s)
they champion.

iii.  Using their in-depth knowledge to support the relevant committee
Chair(s) and Vice Chair(s).

iv.  Represent their area both within and outside the council, in line with
council policies.

v. Engaging relevant stakeholders to include them in the council's
work.

vi. Acting as an advocate or spokesperson for the council's business
and activities.

vii.  Providing positive support, and on occasions, constructive
challenge to officers in driving forward the council agenda on
relevant issues.

viii.  Acting as the council's representative on relevant external bodies
where appointed to by the council.

ix.  Encouraging communications and positive action over the issue(s)
they represent.

The annual statement of the Alternative Transport councillor champion,
Councillor Alan Williamson, is attached at appendix 1 to this report. The
statement is presented to this Committee as it falls within the committee’s
terms of reference.

Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1

3.2

3.3

Equality Impact Assessment

3.1.1 No comments are provided on councillor champion annual
statements.

Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 No comments are provided on councillor champion annual
statements.

Safeguarding

3.3.1 No comments are provided on councillor champion annual
statements.

Page 12



Environment Committee Agenda Iltem 4
4 March 2026

3.4 Dependencies

3.4.1 No comments are provided on councillor champion annual
statements.

3.5 Other

3.5.1 No comments are provided on councillor champion annual
statements.

4  Financial Implications
4.1  No comments are provided on councillor champion annual statements.

4.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this
report.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 None

5.2 Legal Officer’'s comments: None for the purposes of this report
6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: None

6.2 Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service
Delivery Plan.

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: None
6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: None
6.5 Partnerships: None

6.6 Local Government Reorganisation Implications: None

Background papers
7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:
Previous reports:

o Appointment of Alternative Transport Councillor Champion, report
and minutes of Council meeting 09/12/2025

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s37968/Appointment%200f%20Alternative%
20Transport%20Councillor%20Champion.pdf

Page 13


https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s37968/Appointment%20of%20Alternative%20Transport%20Councillor%20Champion.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s37968/Appointment%20of%20Alternative%20Transport%20Councillor%20Champion.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s37968/Appointment%20of%20Alternative%20Transport%20Councillor%20Champion.pdf

Environment Committee Agenda Iltem 4
4 March 2026

Other papers:

o Annex 2.1 of the Operating Framework — Further information on
Councillors

o Appendix 3 of the Constitution — Terms of Reference of the Full
Council and Committees

Page 14



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

Alternative Transport Champion — report for 2025

Work in this area has been conducted initially by Clir Frost (Chair, Environment Committee)
then, subsequently from December 2025, by Clir Williamson (Vice-Chair, Environment
Committee). The reason for the change was that it was identified by officers that a policy
Chair is not technically eligible to serve in this position.

The objective of this role is to promote usage of modes of transport in the borough other
than internal combustion engine vehicles (eg. by foot, by bicycle, or on horseback) or, by
using vehicles that are less harmful to the environment (eg. electric or hybrid vehicles). The
remit of the role is essentially free ranging and involves extensive liaison with councillors at
Surrey County Council who have overall responsibility for highways and pavements which,
clearly, are central to any strategy for alternative transport.

Where cycling is involved there have been extensive representations to SCC councillors
wherever a cycling route is compromised or undermined. SCC councillors have been
favourable in their responses; it is clear that our support for both on-road and off-road cycling
is shared at county level. Moving forward, as EEBC is subsumed into a unitary authority, we
are confident that this shared vision will continue and that there will be broad support for
addressing specific local instances where cycling needs are compromised.

One simple but significant way in which to promote cycle usage across the borough has
been to ensure that planning applications for multi-residence developments or commercial
developments should make adequate provisions for appropriate cycle storage. We are
pleased that officers continue to secure provision in accordance with our adopted standards.

EEBC continues to support the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)
which was endorsed by EEBC in September 2024 and signed off by SCC in March 2025.
This ten year plan has increased opportunities for walking and cycling by improved air
quality through reduced car use, and by promoting increased walking and cycling
opportunities and less car usage through improved infrastructure throughout the borough.
Through the Southern Gas Networks Planning consent, we have secured a financial
contribution towards delivering the LCWIP in addition to other sustainable transport
measures. The Epsom & Ewell District Local Streets Improvement Plan (hosted by SCC) is
in draft. This gives us the opportunity to highlight particular areas that could be improved or
changed to encourage more people to walk or cycle, rather than driving for local journeys.

On occasion there have been representations to SCC councillors where instances of
restricted pedestrian access on pavements have occurred; these instances have sometimes
needed extensive interactions over a period of time but in most cases the issues have been
resolved to the complainants’ satisfaction.

Both CliIr Frost and Clir Williamson recently attended an intensive two-day Climate Change
Masterclass course which gave extensive coverage to greener forms of transport and
achieving reduced emissions. Both have now been duly accredited as ‘Carbon Literate’.
Some interesting case studies were flagged up which we intend to incorporate into work
done by some of our Working Groups.

We are pleased to report significant progress within the borough during 2025 in rolling out
EV charging points. There are now 14 charging points across 5 different council car parks.
During 2025 SCC installed 8 on-street charge points plus 4 lamp post charge points. There
is now a total of 24 live on-street charge points; another 20 are awaiting final connection.

Page 15



Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

EEBC is also subsidising local taxi firms to use EV or hybrid taxis through its Taxi Emissions
Policy.
Despite transport being an area that is largely decided upon at a level above borough level,

we believe that the role of Alternative Transport Champion has merit and that the role and
work should certainly continue when East Surrey Unitary Authority comes into effect in 2027.

Page 16



Environment Committee Agenda Item 5
4 March 2026

SURREY RETROFIT STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN

Head of Service: lan Mawer, Head of Planning Policy and
Economic Development

Report Author Mark Rachwal

Wards affected: (All Wards);

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No

If yes, reason urgent decision N/A

required:

Appendices (attached): Appendix 1 - Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action
Plan

Appendix 2 - Appendices to Surrey Retrofit
Strategic Action Plan

Summary

This report presents the Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (The Plan) and seeks its
endorsement.

The plan sets out a roadmap to accelerate home retrofit, reduce fuel poverty and
increase environmental sustainability in homes across Surrey.

The plan has been developed collaboratively by a wide range of Surrey stakeholders
involved in domestic home retrofit, including Epsom & Ewell Borough Council, with
Surrey County Council acting as the interim lead authority.

It was developed through a pilot scheme which provided funding and expert support from
bodies including the UK Green Building Council, National Retrofit Hub and Greater
South-East Net Zero Hub.

The plan will support the delivery of objectives contained within the Council’s Climate
Change Action Plan (2025-2029).

Endorsement of the plan is being sought from all stakeholders and will demonstrate our
support and commitment to continue to work collaboratively to deliver the goals of the
plan, aligning resources and expertise where feasible.

Recommendation (s)

The Committee is asked to:

Page 17



Environment Committee Agenda Item 5
4 March 2026

(1) Endorse the Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (Appendix 1) and in
conjunction with the Chair to provide written confirmation to Surrey County
Council.

Reason for Recommendation

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

The Council has committed to tackling climate change and The Plan
aligns with and supports this commitment and the delivery of the Council’s
Climate Change Action Plan (2025-2029) adopted by this committee on
15 October 2024.

The Climate Change Committee (an independent statutory body who
advise the UK government on climate change) has warned that progress
in reducing carbon emissions from home heating and addressing fuel
poverty is way off target.

In Epsom and Ewell just under 45% of the borough’s carbon emissions
come from domestic homes (based on 2023 national statistics).

The Plan brings together a broad coalition of local stakeholders, united by
a shared commitment to deliver retrofit and unlock wider local economic
and social benefits through collective action.

The Plan sets out a roadmap to accelerate home retrofit, reduce fuel
poverty and increase environmental sustainability in homes across Surrey.

Background

2.1

2.2

The Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (The “Plan”) has been developed
to accelerate home (domestic) retrofit and decarbonisation across Surrey.
It was developed through the Local Area Retrofit Accelerator (LARA) Pilot,
which has brought together a range of local stakeholders in Surrey around
a shared belief in cutting carbon emissions from heating and cooling
homes, reducing fuel poverty, and delivering wider local economic and
social benefits. Surrey is one of four 'localities' participating in the LARA
Pilot, convened by the MCS Foundation (a charity working to decarbonise
homes, heat and energy in the UK).

LARA was launched in response to the Climate Change Committee’s
warning that progress in reducing carbon emissions from home heating
and addressing fuel poverty is way off target. The LARA pilot was
designed to test a process for rapidly co-developing Local Retrofit
Strategies with key stakeholders to drive collaborative action and
maximise funding and financing opportunities.

Page 18




Environment Committee Agenda Iltem 5

4 March 2026

2.3 Surrey County Council (SCC), with the support of stakeholders including
Epsom & Ewell Borough Council, applied for funding and support from the
LARA pilot to support development of a local retrofit strategy. It was
confirmed that the funding bid was successful in Autumn 2024.

2.4  Between January and July 2025, over 40 organisations collaborated

through a structured co-design process involving workshops, working
groups, and stakeholder interviews. This included representation from
local authorities (including Epsom & Ewell Borough Council), community
groups, supply chain, social landlords, training providers, financial sector,
and national partners. The outcome was the development of a ‘House
plan’ of vision, outcomes, goals, mission statement and principles which
forms the basis of The Plan, as shown in Figure 1.

\

Goal 1: Build a
collaborative
structure to
coordinate working
practices

Goal 1.1: Improve
coordination of
funding mechanisms
Goal 1.2: Improve
coordination of local
supply chain
Goal 1.3: Improve
coordination of
demand generation
activities

Vision:
“To create a new normal where everyone in Surrey has a
comfortable, healthy, affordable-to-run and sustainable home.”

Qutcomes:

G

Goal 2: Build
confidence in retrofit
through clear
infermation, trusted
advice and guidance

Goal 2.1: Improve
awareness,
understanding and
confidence in all
households
Goal 2.1.1: Build
confidence in
households facing
lower barriers
Goal 2.1.2: Build
confidence in
households facing
higher barriers

_—

Improved delivery | Trust | Thriving sector | Equity | Sustainability | Resilience

—
Goal 3: Facilitate
access to flexible,
accessible funding &
finance

Goal 3.1: Enable
households who are
facing lower barriers
to access finance to

undertake retrofit
Goal 3.2: Improve
access to funded
schemes for
households facing
higher barriers

Goal 4: Develop a
skilled, trusted and
stable local supply

chain & skills base

Goal &.1: Support and
grow our local supply
chain and skillz base
through sector
collaboration
Goal 4.1.1: Support &
grow local supply
chain
Goal 4.1.2: Support
and improve local
skills base

—_—

Mission:

“We will work together to deliver our vision, supported by flexible, accessible funding and finance, and
delivered by a local skilled, trusted and stable sector.”

Principles:

Collaborative | Inclusive | People-centred | Ambitious and pragmatic

Trustworthy, reliable and we act with integrity

Figure 1: The ‘House Plan’, with the ‘roof’ representing the Vision and Outcomes, supported by the

strategic Goals, and with the Mission statement and Principles providing the foundation’

Page 19



Environment Committee Agenda Item 5
4 March 2026

2.5 The Plan sets out a three-year roadmap to accelerate home retrofit across
Surrey, uniting a range of local partners around a shared vision so that
more can be achieved together and provides a platform for coordinated,
structured delivery, supported by good governance and oversight to
ensure transparency and effective collaboration.

2.6 The Plan, combined with stakeholder partners’ expertise in local retrofit,
presents a unique opportunity to collaborate and develop relevant projects
that will drive the sustainable growth of retrofit across Surrey.

2.7 Endorsement of the plan is now being sought and would support our
climate change goals and demonstrate our commitment to continue to
work collaboratively in supporting its delivery. It is important to note that
endorsing the plan does not commit the Council to providing resource to
support the delivery of the Plan.

2.8 The plan aligns with and supports the Council’s commitment to tackling
climate change and the delivery of the Council’s Climate Change Action
Plan (2025-2029). It supports our objectives on:

e Providing practical support for residents to access energy efficiency
grant schemes (action 6).

e Supporting Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) in the
private rented sector (action 7).

e Accelerating low carbon measures for social housing (action 8).

e The development and supporting of a local area retrofit strategy and
action plan (action 9).

e Developing green skills in the area (action 14).
e Pursuing joint funding opportunities (action 15).

2.9 The Council has worked collaboratively and successfully with SCC and
other Surrey Boroughs and Districts for many years to support delivery of
local retrofit schemes including on:

e Energy Company Obligation (ECO).

e Home Upgrade Grant (HUG).

e Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (GHGLAD).
e Great British Insulation Scheme (GBIS).

e Solar Together and Switch Together Heat Pumps.

e Home Energy Advice Team (HEAT).

Page 20



Environment Committee Agenda Item 5
4 March 2026

2.10 The Plan will provide greater structure and more effective collaboration in
delivering these and future schemes, along with opening up additional
opportunities for funding.

2.11 The Plan (Appendix 1) will be finalised before publication with a graphic
designed version which will not change the content and make only minor
changes in layout, along with adding the hyperlinks that are currently
missing.

3 Risk Assessment
Legal or other duties
3.1 Equality Impact Assessment

3.1.1 None arising from this report.
3.2 Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 There are no implications in terms of crime and disorder.
3.3 Safeguarding

3.3.1 None arising from this report.
3.4 Dependencies

3.4.1 None arising from this report.
3.5 Other

3.5.1 None arising from this report.
4  Financial Implications
4.1  There are no financial implications.

4.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this
report.

5 Legal Implications
5.1 None arising from this report.
5.2 Legal Officer’'s comments: None arising from this report.
6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships
6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged:

° Green & Vibrant.

Page 21



Environment Committee Agenda Item 5
4 March 2026

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service
Delivery Plan.

Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations:

6.3.1 The Plan will support the delivery of objectives within the Climate
Change Action Plan as detailed in the main report.

Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications:
6.4.1 None arising from this report.

Partnerships:

6.5.1 None

Local Government Reorganisation Implications:

6.6.1 The Plan sets out that in the short-term SCC will act as the interim
lead organisation. In the medium term it is intended that a
successor Governance structure and delivery vehicle will be
constituted. An interim steering group, made up of one or more of
each key stakeholder type (i.e. Borough/District Council, social
housing landlord, education/training provider, financial sector,
supply chain) will progress the Action Plan during LGR such that
the unitary councils have the opportunity to continue to benefit from
and progress the work.

7 Background papers

7.1

The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:
Previous reports:

o None

Other papers:

o Environment Committee: Climate Change Action Plan (2025-2029) —
15 October 2024

Page 22



Agenda Item 5
[Cover page] Appendix 1

Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan

2025 to 2028

Autumn 2025

[Image(s)]

Page 23



Contents

1. Executive Summary

2. Definitions

3. The Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan
4. Vision and Mission

5. SWOT analysis summary

6. Shared Principles

7. Outcomes

8. Goals

9.

Priority Actions — moving from plan to implementation

10. Conclusion: A Collective Commitment

Page 24

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Agenda Item 5
1. Executive summary Appendix 1

Retrofit is defined by the Centre for Sustainable Energy as referring to ‘any improvement work on an existing building
to improve its energy efficiency, making it easier to heat, able to retain that heat for longer, and replacing fossil fuels
with renewable energy.” Wider definitions that consider the impacts of a warming climate may also include
improvements to water use efficiency, cooling and other climate resilience measures, e.g. flooding protection, within
the scope of retrofit.

The Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (the “Plan”) has been developed via the Local Area Retrofit Accelerator
(LARA). Surrey is one of four UK ‘localities’ participating in LARA, which is delivered by the MCS Foundation, a charity
funded by Government to oversee the MCS standards scheme and which now has an expanded remit to drive
innovation to accelerate building retrofit. LARA is funded by the MCS Foundation, the Greater Southeast Net Zero
Hub and the Aurora Foundation. It takes place at a pivotal moment for the national retrofit sector, with full details of
the Government’s Warm Homes Plan due in Autumn 2025.

In Surrey, the retrofit sector represents a £9bn market opportunity to 2050, directly supporting a potential almost
2,900 jobs, though with a skills gap of over 2,100 full-time roles in terms of the additional installers, (heat pump)
engineers, electricians, assessors, and coordinators required to deliver the improvements at the scale required. This
aligns with commitments in the Surrey Skills Plan which highlights ‘the need for green skills, particularly in technical

roles’, as key to ‘capturing the inclusive economic growth potential of a greener economy’, and Surrey’s Economic

Future outlines ‘Capturing the potential of a greener economy’ as one of its four priorities, to ensure Surrey
institutions ‘remain at the leading edge’ to ‘drive new economic opportunities’.

In Surrey’s residential sector alone, there are almost 330,000 homes (65% of total) that have poor energy
performance (energy rated D or below), and energy use in these homes is responsible for 30% of Surrey’s carbon
emissions. A 66% reduction in emissions from housing is required by 2035 to reach Net Zero by 2050, as set out in
Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy and aligned with the UK’s legally binding requirement under the Climate Change

Act. At the same time, 41,800 Surrey households (8.4% of total) are in fuel poverty and home energy upgrades could
provide much needed long-term improved outcomes for these households. More on Surrey’s unique local context
can be found in the Appendix as well as in a Locality Assessment published alongside this Plan.

The Plan sets out a three-year roadmap to accelerate home retrofit across Surrey, uniting a range of local partners
around a shared vision so that more can be achieved together. By establishing a strategic framework including a
mission statement, key strategic goals, shared principles to live and work by, and outcomes to be targeted, the Plan
provides a platform for coordinated, structured delivery, supported by good governance and oversight to ensure
transparency and effective collaboration.

The Plan is a catalyst for action, not just on home energy efficiency, but for building a more resilient, prosperous, and
inclusive Surrey. With coordinated leadership, collaborative delivery, and ongoing support from government,
industry, and communities, Surrey can become a model for retrofit at scale, delivering real-world benefits for
households, the local economy, and the environment.

Page 25


https://www.businesssurrey.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/Surrey-Skills-Plan.pdf
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=74942
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=74942
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/community/climate-change/what-are-we-doing/carbon-free/climate-change-strategy

Agenda Item 5
2. Definitions Appendix 1

The terms used in this document are defined as follows:

Retrofit: Any improvement work on an existing building to improve its energy efficiency, making it easier to heat,
able to retain that heat for longer, and replacing fossil fuels with renewable energy.

‘Good’ or ‘deep’ retrofit: These terms may have different meanings in different contexts. For example, retrofit of a
private rented sector property may be deemed ‘good enough’ in a regulatory sense if it enables the property to meet
the minimum compliant energy rating in the sector at that time, but it may not be objectively a ‘good’ or ‘deep’
retrofit that makes the property low carbon or even affordable to run for the occupant. In the context of Surrey’s
Climate Change Strategy, a ‘good’ retrofit is one that sets a home on a pathway to net zero by 2050. For consistency
of measuring progress against the Plan, where the data is available, signatories may want to agree to measure ‘good’
or ‘deep’ against one or a combination of technical performance standards or other metrics.

Households ‘facing higher/lower barriers’: These terms are intended to capture a variety of household
circumstances that mean different approaches are needed to support them under Goals 2 and 3. For Goal 2, an
example household comprising one or more vulnerable, disabled, elderly, or digitally excluded members are likely to
be ‘harder to reach’ by conventional means and therefore face ‘higher barriers’ to improving their homes. For Goal 3,
households with middle-to-higher incomes are not the target of limited grant-funded schemes and may face ‘lower
barriers’ overall to engaging with retrofit financially, though may still require a trusted finance option to unlock cash
from their assets if they lack savings.

Interim Backbone Organisation: A dedicated entity to ‘hold’ the Plan and facilitate communication, coordination,
and resource mobilisation among signatories aimed at achieving the Plan’s shared vision. The interim organisation
will be succeeded by a new entity in the long-term.

Interim Steering Group: A dedicated governance committee providing oversight for implementing the Plan’s shared
vision and made up of a representative group of organisations of at least one of each key stakeholder type, e.g. local
authority, social landlord, community group, training provider, industry/business.

Place-based approach: A collaborative approach for addressing local issues in the long-term by working within a
specific geographic area, physical setting and/or social context to understand and meet its unique needs. Often
involves joint work across policy areas to address complex problems.

Systems-based approach: An approach that thinks about problems and solutions by considering the entire system in
which they exist, rather than the system’s individual parts. By examining how different elements of the system
interact, it informs where an intervention in the system, e.g. allocating funding towards a particular part, could be
most transformative for the system as a whole, whilst also seeking to avoid unintended negative consequences.

Wider stakeholder network: Refers to the larger group of individuals and organisations with influence and/or impact
over retrofit outcomes in Surrey who may not currently be involved in formal governance structures such as the
Interim Steering Group.

Any other terms, acronyms or references are expanded on in the text of the Plan or in the accompanying Appendix.

Page 26



3. The Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan

The Plan sets out how Surrey can make progress in tackling carbon emissions from the heating and cooling of

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

domestic buildings and the alleviation of fuel poverty. It’s a plan to support growth within the green economy whilst

creating skilled and well-paid jobs and making decisions that balance economic, social and environmental

considerations. These themes are captured in the Vision and Mission and articulated in the Goals and Actions to

achieve them.

The Plan was developed as part of the Local Area Retrofit Accelerator (LARA) project during Winter 2024/25 and
Spring 2025. LARA takes a systems- and place-based approach to tackling retrofit, in a collaborative process bringing

stakeholders together from across the retrofit system in Surrey to co-develop the Plan. It used theory of change

methods including baselining and visioning to agree a set of actions expected to achieve goals that lead to desired

outcomes which unlock benefits for communities.

More details on LARA and the co-creation of the Plan, and the full detail behind each Action and Goal, including
context, assumptions, approach, resources required, links to other actions, proposed sequencing, strategic fit and

expected beneficiaries, is provided in the Appendix.

The Plan is summarised in the ‘House Plan’ diagram in Figure 5. Figures 1-4 show each of the four strategic goals set

out along with their associated actions.

GOAL 1.1:
IMPROVE COORDINATION OF
FUNDING MECHANISMS

GOAL 1=
BUILD A COLLABORATIVE
STRUCTURE TO COORDINATE
WORHING PRACTICES

GOAL1.2:
IMPROVE COORDINATION OF
LOCAL SUPPLY CHAIN

GOAL1.3:
IMPROVE COORDINATION OF
DEMAND GENERATION ACTIVITIES

Action 1.1A: Create Grant Scheme
Support and Coordination role or
allocate to existing

Action 1.2A: Create Retrofit Supply
Chain Development role or allocate to
axisting

Action 1.3A: Set up forum for
stakeholders involved in market
development/ engagement activities

Action 1.18: Conduct stakeholder
mapping of organisations involved in
delivery of funding programmes

Action 1..2B: Set up forum for training
providers and supply chain to be
updated and feedback on future

activity

Action 1.3B: Develop agreement on ways
of working to ensure clear
communication with householdars

Action 1.1C: Set up forum for local
authorities and social landlords to
share knowledge and build
collaborations

Action 1.2C: Create Research & Data
role or allocate to existing

Action 1.1D0: Develop agreement on how
stakeholders can coordinate delivery of
grant schemes to maximize benefits

KEY

I coALs AND SUB-GOALS
() erioriTy AcTiONS
ACTIONS

Figure 1: Goal 1

Action 1.2D: Gather information/data
on demand and supply to help to
ensure balance

Action 1.3C: Convene stakeholders
involved in Surrey Adapt (Resilience),
Local Area Emergy Plan, Surrey Shills
Plan and other linked strategic areas to
enszure alignment

Action 1.2E: Conduct stakeholder
assesement of employer
representative bodies

Action 1.2F: Develop and deliver plamn to
promote local opportunities via local
employer representative bodies

Page 27

Action 1.3D0: Conduct stakeholder
assessment of those within health
gector that could benefit from retrofit
activity

Action 1.3E: Convene and coordinate
with Public Health, Social Care and
Integrated Care Services to strengthen
the enabling environment for retrofit
and create a shared language, work and
understanding

Action 1.3F: Conduct analysis on key
funding gaps and opportunities, non-
financial barriers {e.g. grid capacity,
data) and policy and communicate
findings to stakeholders




GOAL 2:
BUILD CONFIDENCE IN RETROFIT
THROUGH CLEAR INFORMATION,
TRUSTED ADVICE AND GUIDANCE

GOAL 2.1:
IMPROVE AWARENESS,

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

UNDERSTANDING AND
CONFIDENCE IN ALL HOUSEHOLDS

Action 2.1A: Create Retrofit Market
Dewelopment role or allocate to existing

Action 2.1B: Develop agreement between
organisations engaging homeowners to
coordinate activity and consistent messaging

Action 2.1C: Create single brand for retrofit
support and advice in Surrey

Action 210: Create General Retrofit Support

Service to provide advice and triage via
website, email and phone

Action 21E: Prepare plan for enforcement of
Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards {e.g-
outreach activities, landlord register)

Action 21F: Map and develop network of
trusted community intermediaries, e.g.
climate action groups, faith groups

||

Action 21G: Create forum of community
organisations to support retrofit activities

Action 2.1H: Create Community Engagement/
Resident Liaizon Officer role or allocate to
existing

Action 2.11: Develop and deliver retrofit
engagemeant events with community
organisations

Action 2.1): Develop a neighbourhood-scale
and/or grassroots retrofit initiative, engaging
and empowering communities to develop
suitable retrofit schemes

Figure 2: Goal 2

GOAL 244:
BUILD CONFIDENCE IN

HOUSEHOLDS FACING LOWER
BARRIERS

GOAL 2.1.2:
BUILD CONFIDENCE IN
HOUSEHOLDS FACING HIGHER
BARRIERS

Action 2.11A: Create Retrofit Facilitation
Provider/ Specialist Support Service for self-
funded sector

Action 2.11E: Determine touchpoints for self-
funded sector and develop plan to leverage
for retrofit action

Action 2.1.1C: Implement new andfor develop
existing collective buying scheme to reduce
cost of installation

Page 28

Action 2.1.2A: Map local authority officers
already engaging households and develop
plan to increase retrofit awareness

Action 21.28: Develop plan for councils and
community groups to work together to reach
low-income housenods

Action 21.2C: Simplify householder journey
for fuel poor sector grant schemes, €.0. via a
centralised service

KEY

B coaLs aND suB-GOALS

D PRIORITY ACTIONS

ACTIONS



Agenda Item 5
— Appendix 1
FACILITATE ACCESS TO FLEXIBLE,

GOAL 5.1: GOAL 3.2:

ENABLE HOUSEHOLDS WHO ARE IMPROVE ACCESS TO FUNDED
FACING LOWER BARRIERS TO ACCESS SCHEMES FOR HOUSEHOLDS FACING
FINANCE TO UNDERTAKE RETROFIT HIGHER BARRIERS

Action 3.1A: Create Retrofit Finance role Action 3.2A: Conduct stakeholder
or allocate to existing assesement of local authorities
involved in ECO LA Flex and understand
each local authority strategy

Action 3.1B: Develop attractive finance
offers under trusted brand

Action 3.2B: Agree minimum level of
service for delivery of ECO LA Flex and
Action 3.1C: Deliver retrofit finance support local authorities in mesting
advice via General Support Service minimum

Action 3.2C: Engage Energy Company
Obligation providers as a consortium to
simplify customer journey

Action 3.20: Engage with grant
commissioning organisations to

determine plan to maximize benefits
from Warm Homes Local! Social
Housing gramt schemes

Action 3.2E: Engage with social/ private
landlords to determine financial
barriers in delivery of retrofit and
develop rectification plan

Action 3.2F: Develop and deliver a social
HEY prescribing scheme with GPs and

health partnars
I coaLs AND SUB-GOALS

D PRIORITY ACTIONS

ACTIONS

Figure 3: Goal 3

Page 29



GOAL &:
DEVELOP A SKILLED, TRUSTED AND
STABLE LOCAL SUPPLY CHAIN &
SHILLS BASE

GOAL &1:
SUPPORT AND GROW OUR LOCAL

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

SUPPLY CHAIN AND SHILLS BASE
THROUGH SECTOR COLLABORATION

Action &1A: Create a forum(s) for training
providers and supply chain to share
learning and best practice, explore skills
needs and inform training provision

Action &.1B: Develop plan to promote

retrofit careers and support both new
entrants and those re-skilling, with a
focus on diversifying the workforce

GOAL &A4:
SUPPORT & GROW LOCAL SUPPLY

GOAL §.1.2:
SUPPORT AND IMPROVE LOCAL
SHILLS BASE

Action &.1.1A: Develop a coordinated
Surrey procurement approach which
benefits local supply chain, particularly
SMEs

Action 4.1C: Create Retrofit Installer
‘community of practice” (SME focus) for
peer-to-peer learning, upskilling.
mentoring and general support

Action &1D: Provide on-site training
through local autherity/zocial landlord
commissioned works, a& part of funded

retrofit programmes via social value

Action &1E: Develop an investment vehicle
to channel private investment into local
training

KEY
I coALs AND SUB-GOALS

D PRIORITY ACTIONS

ACTIONS

Figure 4: Goal 4

Action 4.1.18: Develop and deliver SME-
friendly social impact standard and
processes with the aim of increasing
SME involvement in contract delivery

Action &.1.2A: Develop plan with

industry to support colleges by
creating ‘end of career” pathway to
‘give back’ via trainer roles

Action 4.1.28: Conduct review of local

retrofit training provision including
early stage retrofit content/modules in
general construction courses

Action &.1.1C: Boost regular and
consistent comms with supply chain
including *'meet the buyer’ events

Action 41.1D: Collate advice and
guidance on accessing start up finance
for market entrants or for SMEs to
expand, via Economic Development
teams

Action &11E: Develop options for a
trusted installers network in the self-
funded market

Page 30

Action 41.2C: Conduct review and then
develop business case for funding/
inwvestment in facilities, equipment, and
staff recruitment, training and
retention for delivery of courses

Action 4.1.2D: Develop and deliver
activities to support take up of
apprenticeships (e.g. promo
campaigns, shared-apprenticeship
pilots, grants for SMEs)



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Vision:
“To create a new normal where everyone in Surrey has a
comfortable, healthy, affordable-to-run and sustainable home.”

Outcomes:
Improved delivery | Trust | Thriving sector | EqQuity | Sustainability | Resilience

Goal 1: Build a
collaborative
structure to
coordinate working
practices

Goal 2: Build
confidence in retrofit
through clear
information, trusted
advice and guidance

Goal 3: Facilitate
access to flexible,
accessible funding &
finance

Goal &4: Develop a
skilled, trusted and
stable lecal supply
chain & skills base

Goal 3.4: Enable
households who are
facing lower barriers
to access finance to

undertake retrofit

Goal &.1: Support and
grow our local supply
chain and skills base
through sector
collaboration

Goal 1.1: Improve
coordination of
funding mechanisms
Goal 1.2: Improve

Goal 2.1: Improve
awareness,
understanding and
confidence in all

coordination of local households Goal 3.2: Improve Goal &.1.1: Support &
supply chain Geoal 2.1.1: Build access to funded grow local supply
Goal 1.3: Improve confidence in schemes for chain

coordination of households facing households facing Goal &.1.2: Support
demand generation lower barriers higher barriers and improve local
activities Goal 2.1.2; Build skillzs base
confidence in
households facing

higher barriers

Miszsion:
“We will work together to deliver our vision, supported by flexible, accessible funding and finance, and
delivered by a local skilled, trusted and stable sector.”

Principles:
Collaborative | Inclusive | People-centred | Ambitious and pragmatic
Trustworthy, reliable and we act with integrity

Figure 5: The ‘House Plan’, with the ‘roof’ representing the Vision and Outcomes, supported by the strategic Goals, and with the Mission
statement and Principles providing the ‘foundation’.

Page 31



Agenda Item 5
The Plan is endorsed by Appendix 1

[INSERT LOGOS IN FINAL GRAPHIC DESIGNED VERSION]

Page 32



Agenda Item 5
4. Vision & Mission Appendix 1

Vision: “To create a new normal where everyone in Surrey has a
comfortable, healthy, affordable-to-run and sustainable home.”

Mission statement: “We will work together to deliver our vision,
supported by flexible, accessible funding and finance, and
delivered by a local skilled, trusted and stable sector.”

Page 33



Agenda Item 5
5. SWOT analysis summary Appendix 1

The Plan is underpinned by the comprehensive Locality Assessment and a Shared Understanding exercise that
mapped the current state of the retrofit system in Surrey (as of Spring 2025). This includes identifying and
recognising our county’s unique Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (“SWOT”).

The SWOT provides a context for the Plan’s recommended actions to sit within, addressing weaknesses while
amplifying strengths, maximising opportunities and being prepared to mitigate the potential impact of threats. The
full SWOT analysis is captured in the Appendix, along with detail under each recommended Action on how it directly
links to and addresses the relevant SWOT elements identified in Surrey. The analysis is summarised here.

Strengths

Strengths include the collaborative networks already in place for instance between local authorities, community
groups and training providers. Successful grant funding delivery in both private and social housing, strong
homeowner demand for solar PV and battery measures along with small but growing numbers of new low carbon
heating installations, and community-led energy advice initiatives all provide a platform for success.

Weaknesses

Weaknesses within our control to address involve a lack of cohesion between local stakeholders’ plans, public
hesitation to act, skills gaps and a lack of demand for retrofit courses. Those outside of our direct control include
resource limitations, the unreliability of Energy Performance Certificates (EPCs), historically overly complex grant
scheme eligibility requirements, a lack of compelling finance offers for the many homeowners without upfront capital
to spend, inconsistent data and insufficient powers to support those in the private rented sector (PRS).

Opportunities

Opportunities identified include the latest round of strong grant funding allocations, growing consumer trust in
established local brands, compelling case studies, building stronger relationships with social housing providers,
promoting local quality jobs, promised EPC and PRS reforms, more insightful use of higher quality data, potential
efficiencies resulting from Devolution, and the health and social care benefits of retrofit that could unlock new
avenues for cross-sector working.

Threats

Threats stem from competing resource pressures, supply chain constraints, regulatory delays, inconsistent quality
assurance regimes, and the urgency of climate change response. Misinformation and shifts in political backing or
funding priorities could slow progress, so these will need to be carefully managed through effective governance and a
clear, adaptable Plan.

Page 34



Agenda Item 5
6. Shared Principles Appendix 1

The following five core principles will guide all actions and commitments by signatories to the Plan. Any resulting
governance agreements between signatories to the Plan will formally ensure they remain front and centre.

1: Collaborative: Actively work together, align efforts and share resources
2: Inclusive: All communities, sectors, and voices involved
3: People-centred: Designing solutions around residents’ needs

4. Ambitious and pragmatic: Setting bold goals while delivering practical, achievable
solutions that work locally

5: Trustworthy, reliable and we act with integrity: Building confidence through honesty and
delivering on promises

Page 35



Agenda Item 5
7. Outcomes Appendix 1

The Plan is designed to deliver measurable improvements in the following areas:

Improved delivery — Effective partnerships, coordinated delivery, and expanded resources

Trust — Increase in collective understanding of the benefits of retrofit, with households
confident that retrofit is worth the hassle, whilst supported by a coherent and consolidated
group of reliable advice sources

Thriving sector — Sustainable growth of a suitably sized and skilled workforce that reflects
the diverse communities it serves, with private investment unlocked at scale

Equity — More homes meet occupants’ basic needs for health, comfort and affordability
Sustainability — More homes use energy efficiently with low carbon emissions

Resilience — Homes fit for changes in the future climate and environment

The outcomes are interdependent and will be collectively delivered across all Plan goals, reflecting the systems-based
approach at the heart of this work. Progress will be monitored through a series of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
which will be defined as part of the priority action to finalise the Monitoring, Evaluation, Accountability and Learning
(MEAL) framework, a key requirement for determining what is working and what isn’t (see Section 9).

We would expect the following may be part of the KPI suite:

e Increase in accessibility of trusted services, funding and finance, evidenced by socio-economic data of those
accessing services

e Percentage increase in no. homes per year receiving ‘good’ or ‘deep’ retrofit (see definition in Section 2)
e Complaint volumes via delivered services

e Evidence of increased partnership working such as number of joint funding agreements, agreed ways of working,
or attendance at forums

e Increased level of investment in retrofit

e Increase of people employed in retrofit careers

e Increase of accredited installers (e.g. MCS)

e Increase of MCS accredited low carbon technology installations per year
e Proportion of works carried out by ‘local’ installers and SMEs

e Numbers completing related training courses within Surrey

e Numbers of newly qualified securing relevant employment

e Reduction in fuel poverty

e Increase of community energy organisations and/or community owned renewables

Page 36



Agenda Item 5
Average EPC rating increase across the Surrey region Appendlx 1

. e . . Some KPIs may rely on proxies where
Decrease in carbon emissions from domestic properties yrelyonp

direct measurement is challenging, e.g.

Estimated household bill savings from installed measures assessing ‘effective partnerships’.

Improved local housing-related health data

Page 37



Agenda Item 5
8. Goals Appendix 1

The following goals and sub-goals have been determined:

1. Build a collaborative structure to coordinate working practices
1.1. Improve coordination of funding mechanisms
1.2. Improve coordination of local supply chain
1.3. Improve coordination of demand generation activities
2. Build confidence in retrofit through clear information, trusted advice & guidance
2.1. Improve awareness, understanding and confidence in all households
2.1.1.Build confidence in households facing lower barriers
2.1.2.Build confidence in households facing higher barriers
3. Facilitate access to flexible, accessible funding & finance
3.1. Enable those who are facing lower barriers to access finance to undertake retrofit
3.2. Improve access for households facing higher barriers to funded schemes
4. Develop a skilled, trusted and stable local supply chain & skills base
4.1. Support and grow our local supply chain and skills base through sector collaboration
4.1.1.Support & grow local supply chain

4.1.2.Support and improve local skills base

Goal 1: Build a collaborative structure to coordinate working practices

Rationale: This goal highlights a key aspect of the Plan: that collaboration and coordination can achieve better
outcomes. The goal focuses on funding (1.1), supply chain (1.2) and demand generation (1.3) aspects of the system.
The actions sitting under this goal work to put the structure in place for collaboration and coordination and keep it in
place during the Plan’s lifetime. The collaborative structures themselves, once set up, will need to be open to regular
review to ensure inclusivity of stakeholders, voices and perspectives, and this principle should be enshrined in the
respective Terms of Reference.

Assumptions: The goal assumes that, for a given input of resources, the collaboration of local stakeholders and
effective coordination of their activities can indeed achieve increased scale and better outcomes. It assumes that
each stakeholder will be able to identify and realise a benefit from working together, thus providing the motivation to
ensure they deliver the relevant part(s) of the Plan. It also assumes that funding and other resources are key drivers
for retrofit activity, that improvements to the supply chain can be made and that demand can be increased.

Goal 2: Build confidence in retrofit through clear information, trusted advice and guidance

Rationale: This goal reflects potential mistrust of retrofit measures and their benefits and conflicting or dishonest
advice, and the fact retrofit isn’t a normalised activity. The goal hopes to counter this through improving awareness

Page 38



Agenda Item 5

(2.1) and specific actions for those where retrofit is easier (2.1.1), due to economic and owﬁkpp&mdﬂmoﬂs, and for
those that are finding it more difficult (2.1.2).

Assumptions: The goal assumes that, through the provision of information and support, confidence can be grown,
and action can be galvanized. Economic conditions will have a significant impact on the ability to deliver this goal.
The goal also assumes that any short-term increase in demand resulting from the success of the actions that sit
under this goal can be delivered by the existing supply chain or with minimal formal training.

Goal 3: Facilitate access to flexible, accessible funding & finance

Rationale: This goal highlights the need for economic stimulus to achieve market growth, whether that be from
private investment or institutional funding. The sub-goals cover both the need to provide financial options for middle
income households, whether they be products for those in a position to take on debt or other innovative non-debt
products (3.1), and the need for long-term grant funding options for those most at risk of being left behind (3.2). For
the former, the actions have a focus on ensuring finance options are attractive and low cost. For the latter, the focus
is on existing funding schemes such as the Warm Homes Local Grant and the Energy Company Obligation, the latter
being historically under performing and so would benefit from local improvement.

Assumptions: This goal assumes that some homeowners will take up finance offerings to undertake retrofit in their
homes, hence an initial source of lending or other non-debt product may be advantageous to encourage scaling of
the market. There is mixed evidence on households’ appetite to take on debt for retrofit, with some successful case
studies, therefore stakeholders will need to be sure of the rationale for any specific action. There is also the
assumption that grant funding will be taken up by those eligible and actions in other areas of the Plan can support
this by building trust and empowerment in communities.

Goal 4: Develop a skilled, trusted and stable local supply chain & skills base

Rationale: This goal helps to balance the demand-orientated actions under other goals by developing capacity within
the supply chain (4.1). This is important to ensure quality of work delivered is high, technical performance gaps are
minimised, benefits are realised, and households’ confidence grows that their needs and aspirations will be fulfilled,
thus increasing demand, which in-turn boosts supplier confidence to move into and grow in the sector, creating a
virtuous circle of sustainable sector growth. The sub-goals highlight both the need to grow the local supply chain
(4.1.1) and to support and improve the local skills base (4.1.2).

Assumptions: The goal assumes that a sector can be developed particularly when demand is developing from a low,
grants orientated base. It also assumes that skills can be delivered by the local population and economy.

Page 39



Agenda Item 5
9. Priority Actions — moving from Plan to Implementation Appendix 1

The Plan provides a high-level list of actions to be completed to achieve each goal. These can be viewed in Figures 1-
4 in Section 3, with full detail provided in the Appendix. Moving forwards, the high-level actions list will need to be
developed with the input of stakeholders into a more detailed implementation plan and timeline, including
identifying and plotting a roadmap to securing sustainable investment to close funding gaps.

Surrey stakeholders are already doing fantastic work in this growing sector, as outlined in the Locality Assessment
and the detailed SWOT analysis in the Appendix, and the Plan will seek further early interventions to build on this
work, refine and coordinate delivery models where it makes sense to, and scale successful approaches. Accordingly,
several priority actions are to be completed as follows. Many of these can be completed well in advance of 1% April
2027, the first day of the new unitary authorities in Surrey post Local Government Reorganisation (LGR).

1. (Interim) Backbone organisation
Timeline: September 2025 -

Effective implementation of the Plan requires it to be ‘held’ by one organisation, referred to as the ‘backbone
organisation’; a dedicated entity facilitating communication, coordination, and resource mobilisation among
participating stakeholders aimed at achieving the Plan’s shared vision. In the short term, the role of Interim Backbone
Organisation will be taken on by Surrey County Council (SCC).

2. Set up interim steering group
Timeline: September 2025 -

To ensure democratic decision-making processes, an Interim Steering Group (the “Group”) will be set up which will
hold and steer the endorsement process for the Plan and progress the next steps to agreement of an implementation
plan. The Group will be made up of one or more of each key stakeholder type. Terms of Reference have been
drafted, and the Group’s first meeting took place in October 2025.

The Group includes membership from SCC as interim backbone organisation; however, the Group need to steward
the Plan’s implementation progress during LGR such that the unitary councils that succeed SCC are prepared to take
up the mantle of Interim Backbone Organisation(s) and grasp the opportunities presented by LGR. Not all the Plan’s
recommended actions are within the control of the local authorities, hence the Plan is to be co-owned and delivered
by endorsing stakeholders, with oversight of the Group.

In the medium term, a successor governance structure and delivery vehicle (legal entity or other) will be constituted,
replacing both the Interim Steering Group and the Interim Backbone Organisation(s) for the long-term. This entity
will take the Plan forward at pace and deliver it in partnership with Surrey’s new unitary councils, Mayoral Strategic
Authority (MSA), and other endorsing stakeholders. The Interim Steering Group will be responsible for agreeing,
implementing and communicating this successor structure with a clear route explained on how the wider stakeholder
network can contribute.

3. Warm Homes funding
Timeline: September 2025 2>

Local authorities and social landlords across Surrey have secured around £28.3m funding from Government and
match funding under the Warm Homes Plan. These programmes offer a significant opportunity to embed

Page 40



Agenda Item 5

collaborative and coordinated ways of working, in particular to maximise growth, experienAp}pemdbéeln the
local supply chain. Hence, they represent a cornerstone around which to build the Plan’s implementation. This is
represented by Action 3.2D in the Plan — see the Appendix for more information.

4. MEAL Framework
Timeline: November 2025 >

A key part of delivering the Plan is determining what is working and what isn’t working, and developing amplification
or rectification plans respectively, via a Monitoring, Evaluation, Accountability and Learning (MEAL) framework, with
progress against the Plan reviewed at least once per year. System change can be difficult to monitor and be confident
of the connection between cause and effect. However, it is essential to understand whether a project or programme
under the Plan is having the intended impact and report this to stakeholders and external bodies such as funders.

The Interim Steering Group will oversee the next steps to setting up the Plan’s MEAL framework. Section 5.3 of the
Appendix provides further information.

5. Data Management
Timeline: November 2025 >

Data can be important in developing the correct course of action and in determining performance of a given action.
Processes will be put in place to ensure data is gathered and shared. Action 1.2D is an example of a priority action
that seek to improve the use of data and insights derived from data.

6. Roles
Timeline (subject to change pending ratification timeline):
e (Q1-2026 — Review capacity
e (Q2-2026 — Draft job descriptions
e (Q3-2026 — Recruit

A key aspect of the Plan is to establish dedicated roles to increase capacity and skills and drive forward the Plan’s
goals. These do not necessarily need to be new positions within an organisation and could be allocated to existing
roles or recruited on a part time basis initially, dependent on funding and other factors. A priority action is for the
backbone organisation to review capacity across the system and, working with stakeholders, determine job
descriptions and where the role will sit. Some of the roles could be held by the same person or one role could be
shared across roles across an organisation.

In an ideal scenario, the Plan includes the following roles:

e Grants Scheme Support & Coordination: Working to increase access to grants and coordinate delivery of
schemes between stakeholders (Action 1.1A)

e Retrofit Supply Chain Development: Supporting development of the supply chain in terms of capacity
and quality (Action 1.2A)

e Research & Data: Carrying out research activities and collating data on retrofit performance across the
system (Action 1.2C)

Page 41



Agenda Item 5
e Retrofit Market Development: Supporting delivery of advice and support servio@@@@p\ﬂﬂm}s{lcﬂ_across
tenures (Action 2.1A)

e Community Engagement: Supporting work to engage with community organisations and manage activity
(Action 2.1H)

e Retrofit Finance: Leading on work to deliver finance actions and coordinating activity across the system
(Action 3.1A)

7. Forums
Timeline: January 2026 2>

A key assumption of the Plan is that coordination and collaboration can enable more to be delivered for the same
input. The Plan assumes that, to do this, bringing together stakeholders is an important action. To this end there are
several actions relating to the setting up of forums and action groups. Their respective Terms of Reference should
ensure forum membership is regularly reviewed to ensure inclusivity.

8. Other actions to prioritise

The full set of actions to prioritise over the next 12 months are highlighted in dark blue in Figures 1-4.

Page 42



Agenda Item 5
9. Conclusion: A Collective Commitment Appendix 1

The Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan is not just a plan — it is a commitment to action, setting the foundation for
lasting change in the way Surrey homes are adapted for a low-carbon, equitable and climate-resilient future.

Whilst commitment of resources is voluntary and non-binding, signatories to the Plan are expected to contribute to
its implementation in the spirit of sustained collaboration and in the recognition that aligning resources and expertise
where possible could and should yield greater outcomes.

The journey ahead will require collective determination and learning together to scale the most successful and
innovative approaches and delivery models. The good news is that progress on several of the Plan’s recommended
actions is already underway, with stakeholders working in partnership to scale positive results.

Recent examples include the over 1,400 fuel poor private households receiving retrofit under Surrey’s local authority-
led grant schemes; the over 3,000 self-funded households installing rooftop solar via the Solar Together scheme; the
combined over £28m secured to deliver the Warm Homes Plan in Surrey’s private and social housing sectors; the
over 2,000 households since 2024 that have received a home energy visit from trusted community intermediaries like
Zero Carbon Guildford and Energy Action Redhill & Reigate; or the investments already being made in future retrofit
training provision such as Brooklands College’s new Low Carbon Centre.

From promising but uncoordinated first steps in recent years, the Plan provides a clear path forward — now it is up to
all of us to work together to turn ambition into impact.

With governance structures in place, stakeholder relationships strengthened, and much more work to be done,
Surrey now has the opportunity to demonstrate that we can come together to deliver meaningful results for people
and planet. To create a new normal where everyone in Surrey has a comfortable, healthy, affordable-to-run and
sustainable home.

Page 43



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

[BACK COVER WITH ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS]

Page 44



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2

Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan - The Appendix

To ensure a clear and focused Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (the “Plan”) document [hyperlink], detailed
information and background to do with the Plan’s development is housed instead in this Appendix. While some
elements of the Plan co-developed during the Local Area Retrofit Accelerator (LARA) stakeholder workshops have
been summarised in the main document, they are included in full in this Appendix for transparency, including
methodology, decision-making processes and rationale. This may be of use to aid development of more detailed
action plans and planning for allocation of resources and next steps.

Contents

1. Background

2. Vision and Mission
3. SWOT analysis detail
4. Shared Principles

5. Outcomes

6. Goals and Actions: Detail and rationale

Page 45



Agenda Item 5

1. Background Appendix 2

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

The Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan (the “Plan”) sets out a systems-led, place-based roadmap to
accelerate home retrofit and decarbonisation across Surrey. Developed through the Local Area Retrofit
Accelerator (LARA) Pilot, this Plan unites a range of local stakeholders around a shared belief in cutting
carbon emissions from heating and cooling homes, reducing fuel poverty, and delivering wider local
economic and social benefits. Surrey is one of four 'localities' participating in the LARA Pilot, convened by
the MCS Foundation. The other localities were Hertfordshire, The East Midlands Combined Counties, and
the Liverpool City Region. While each locality benefited from shared learning and process developments
through the pilot, the resulting Local Retrofit Strategies are entirely independent from each other.

Why a system, place-based approach? Tackling home retrofit at scale demands more than isolated
projects, it requires systemic change. The approach takes a whole-system view across six pillars:
community, skills and training, homes, low carbon technology, financial resourcing and governance. It
recognises that stakeholders need to collaborate and coordinate to create lasting, scalable impact. It is
grounded in the unique characteristics and challenges of Surrey as a region, leveraging the expertise and
energy of local partners while aligning with national net zero ambitions.

Between January and July 2025, over 40 organisations collaborated through a structured co-design process
involving workshops, working groups, and stakeholder interviews. This included representation from local
authorities, community groups, supply chain, social landlords, training providers, financial sector, and
national partners. Together, they developed a shared vision and mission, agreed principles, determined
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats to accelerating retrofit in the region and developed a
suite of coordinated goals and actions.

The collective vision is “To create a new normal where everyone in Surrey has a comfortable, healthy,
affordable-to-run and sustainable home.”

The mission is “We will work together to deliver our vision, supported by flexible, accessible funding and
finance, and delivered by a local skilled, trusted and stable sector.”

The approach is underpinned by five shared principles:
e Collaborative
e Inclusive
e People-centred
e Ambitious and pragmatic
e Trustworthy, reliable and we act with integrity

Early delivery of priority actions will be an important first step to kick start the delivery of the Plan
including improving public advice services, workforce development, and coordinated use of existing
funding streams (e.g., the government’s Warm Homes scheme).

The Plan is a theory of change. In other words, a framework outlining how and why a specific intervention,
programme, or policy is expected to lead to desired changes or outcomes. The Plan details a range of
interventions and actions that need to be carried out to achieve goals and associated outcomes. For each
action and goal, the why is set out in the rationale and assumptions. Then the Monitoring, Evaluation,
Accountability and Learning (MEAL) section details how you can determine whether the theory is working
or not.

The LARA Pilot is being delivered by the MCS Foundation in partnership with the National Retrofit Hub and
the UK Green Building Council. The pilot is funded by the MCS Foundation, Greater South East Net Zero
Hub and the Aurora Foundation. The MCS Foundation is a charity working to decarbonise homes, heat, and
energy in the UK.

Page 46



1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

Agenda Item 5
The 'House Plan' (Figure 1 in the main document) visually captures the core outn@tp@&ﬂd‘%ﬁlot co-
design process in a familiar and relevant structure. It also reflects the systems approach needed to
accelerate retrofit, that the house is only as strong as the sum of its parts. The foundations, our mission
and principles provide stability and direction, anchoring and guiding our collective action. The pillars
represent the goals and sub-goals, holding the structure upright. The vision and outcomes form the roof,
which protects and provides a clear sense of purpose, uniting and covering all our efforts beneath it.

The Plan was developed as part of the Local Area Retrofit Accelerator pilot (the “Pilot”). This initiative
aimed to take a systems approach to tackling retrofit. A systems approach is a way of thinking about
problems and solutions by considering the entire system, rather than just individual parts. It's a holistic and
interdisciplinary method that emphasizes how different elements interact. The Pilot also aimed to take a
place-based approach. This is an approach using a collaborative process to address the needs of a
community by working together to improve the quality of life. It involves understanding a place's social
context and physical setting. In this context the place was Surrey and stakeholders from across the retrofit
system in Surrey were invited to co-develop the Plan.

The Plan came from a series of workshops and working groups attended by actors involved in retrofit
within Surrey between January and July 2025. The Pilot team carried out research to help inform decisions
and facilitated conversations enabling the Plan to emerge. Surrey County Council were the lead
organisation for the process. The Pilot team worked closely with Surrey County Council from the start.
Working with Surrey County Council, an extensive list of stakeholders was developed.

Interviews were held with a sample of stakeholders and findings were combined with desk-based research
to build a picture of the area, the Locality Assessment. This then guided work at the first workshop to
develop a Shared Understanding of how the local retrofit system is working currently. From this, the
attendees started to develop themes for a vision. This was then honed by one of the working groups
(smaller groups of workshop attendees getting together between workshops) and approved at the next
workshop. Once the vision was in place, the stakeholders could start to develop the goals and actions
needed. Importantly, they also agreed on the shared principles needed to ensure they can work together
and achieve the vision.

The workshops and working groups form stage 2 of the process, also known as ‘Co-design’ — see figure 2.
The MCS Foundation has completed the ‘Understanding the system’ phase for the whole of England which
has determined key stakeholders to have involved in stage 2. Stage 1 saw the Foundation working with the
lead organisation, Surrey County Council, on a stakeholder assessment. Stage 3 is the implementation of
the Plan followed by stage 4 to learn and reflect before starting the process again.

Stage O S?ag.e 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4
Sigeii o I Biiding 777" Co-design ' Actingtogether ERMRI &
the system mandate 9 9109 Reflecting

Figure 2: LARA Pilot: Co-design process

1.15.

The Plan has the following defined terms:

e ACTIONS: Things done by people and organisations in Surrey in support of goals, by individuals or
groups.

e GOALS: Something Surrey hopes to achieve which is formed of multiple actions and achieved by
multiple parties.

e MISSION: How the work needed to achieve the vision will be taken forward.

o QOUTCOMES: The result of something, or the consequence of it, is the outcome.

Page 47



1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

Agenda Item 5
e PLAN: A plan for Surrey made up of multiple goals (under which sit acﬁoApp@ﬂdMi(ﬁr mission
and vision.

e VISION: One sentence that describes the future-facing, longer term ambition of the Plan and
offers inspiration and motivation.

The Pilot was funded and led by The MCS Foundation, a charity working to decarbonise all homes in the
UK. Additional funding was provided by the Aurora Trust and the Greater South East Net Zero Hub.

The Pilot has been delivered in partnership with Ashden, National Retrofit Hub and the UK Green Building
Council. The Pilot team would also like to thank Cara Jenkinson from Ashden, Rachna Leveque from
Catapult, Helen Cross from Deloitte LLP, James Clarke from The Energy Saving Trust, Nikki Dekker from the
Greater South East Net Zero Hub, Georgia Aristide-Oke from Innovate UK, Emma Lower from Lendology,
Alex Duley from MCS Foundation, Anna Hollyman, David Adams, Joanne Wheeler, Kirsty Girvan, and Tosca
Herson from UKGBC and Justin MacMillian from Which? who all supported the workshops held in Surrey.
The workshops were designed by Dark Matter Labs and Collaborate CIC and delivered by The MCS
Foundation and Collaborate CIC.

The biggest thank you goes to all the workshop and working group attendees. A considerable amount of

time and energy was given to the project, highlighting the importance of the vision and delivery of this

Plan.

Accent Housing

Activate Learning

Aura Retrofit

Brooklands College

Circular Dorking

Community Energy Pathways

Diocese of Guildford

Elmbridge Borough Council
Energy Action Redhill and Reigate
Epsom & Ewell Borough Council
Essex County Council

Furbnow

Good People

Greater South East Net Zero Hub
HACT

Happy Energy

Ichoosr

Instagroup

Lendology

MIT Skills

National Energy Foundation

National Wealth Fund

NESCOT College

NHS Surrey Heartlands ICB

National Independent Consumer Organisation
Raven Housing Trust

Raven Renewables
Reigate and Banstead Borough Council
Runnymede Borough Council

Samsung

Soltherm

Spelthorne Borough Council
Scottish and Southern Electricity Networks
Surrey Climate Commission
Surrey Community Action
Surrey County Council
Sustain Change.Org
Tandridge District Council
Surrey Community Energy
Waverley Borough Council
Your Energy Your Way

Zero Carbon Guilford

Page 48



Agenda Item 5

2. Vision & Mission Appendix 2

2.1. Overview

2.1.1. Work on the vision started during Workshop 1, attended by local authorities, training providers,
social landlords, community energy organisations, government organisations and the supply chain.
Please see Workshop 1 report for more information.

2.1.2. The vision exercise revealed several key themes shaping individual and organisational aspirations as
per the below synthesised statements from the workshop (also see the Workshop 1 report). These
included:

2.1.2.1. High standards and trust — establishing respected industry, trusted advice, consumer
confidence, high standards, performance

2.1.2.2. Delivery — skilled workforce, coordinated approach, delivery models

2.1.2.3. Collective action, collaboration and ownership — collaboration, people, engaged,
empowered stakeholders, joining components into a whole

2.1.2.4, Consumer benefits — support for residents, affordability, reduced fuel bills, quality, access
for all, healthier, comfortable living

2.1.2.5. Social outcomes — diversity, social equity, every home matters, healthy homes, better
health

2.1.2.6. Long-term strategy — net zero, investment, carbon reduction

2.1.2.7. The future — a new normal, positive vision, better future, households that want retrofit,
future-proofing, move the frame, legacy and opportunity for change

2.1.2.8. Financial considerations and market positioning — broader perspective, people in the
middle are stuck, aspirations, investable propositions

2.1.3. A working group was set up to refine the vision and this was presented at Workshop 2 and the final

vision was agreed. See Workshop 2 report for more information.

3. Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats (SWOT)

3.1. Introduction

3.1.1.

The SWOT was developed over several phases. The Pilot team conducted qualitative and
guantitative research published in the Locality Assessment with data gathered through desk-based
research and stakeholder interviews. The Locality Assessment informed the workshops, particularly
the Shared Understanding and set a baseline understanding of Surrey’s retrofit system. The Locality
Assessment report [insert link] details specific geographic and demographic information about the
locality. It also provides insight into activity within the locality in relation to each of the six pillars of a
retrofit system, as developed by Dark Matter Labs. The ‘six pillars’ are a tool to understand a system,
and are as follows:

e Community:
o Awareness and appetite for retrofitting from residents
o Trust building

o Participation & engagement

Page 49


https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1EYSbqc9KV0IwNLxyVE8savyZ_xCOWeD3Mxmdc_eFcnM/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1aCgsxiFCfAFV-I820M-0b3U6YP6_yx7ll2vXQEayRRk/edit?usp=sharing

Agenda Item 5
e Skills and Training: Appendlx 2

o Market size and quality of works
o Range of different programmes, tenures & building typologies
o Skills pipeline needed for future works
e Homes:
o Building types and tenures across the area
o Approach to carbon and energy saving
e Low carbon technology:
o Heat pump ‘readiness’
o Energy generation & storage
o Planning & infrastructure e.g. grid constraints
e Financial resourcing:
o Funding and finance
o Variations across tenures & delivery models
o Impacts on quality retrofit works e.g. user-centred service models
e (Governance
o Ownership and governance structures
o Procurement policy e.g. community wealth building

3.1.2. After Workshop 1, the Shared Understanding Working Group met to start creating and refining a
SWOT based on the Locality Assessment and outputs from the workshop. The Shared Understanding
group came to Workshop 2 with a draft Vision statement and SWOT analysis, that was reviewed,
critiqued and revised during the course of the workshop. The SWOT highlighted the county's
strengths in collaborative networks, green skills programmes, and successful grant funding, while
finding challenges such as resource limitations, skills gaps, and public hesitation. Opportunities
included community engagement, local supply chains, and collective purchasing, counterbalanced by
threats like funding uncertainty, supply chain constraints, and regulatory delays. This was reviewed
and revised by the group and a revised SWOT put to stakeholders in Workshop 3 for approval, with
98% of stakeholders agreeing with the final presentation.

3.2. Strengths

3.2.1. Strength 1: Solar Together and the Furbnow one-stop shop (OSS) pilot have both proven
there is demand for retrofit in Surrey

e Further information: Solar Together provides a trusted group-buying scheme that helps
residents access solar PV and battery storage at competitive prices, supporting the scale-
up of local renewable energy in Surrey. 3,000 installs and £23m invested to date
demonstrates considerable appetite from Surrey homeowners for retrofit. The OSS pilot
meanwhile has seen over 150 Surrey households pay for a whole-house assessment and,
to date, 30 have now begun deep retrofit of their homes, with Furbnow’s expert
coordination support.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3, 2.1,2.1.1,4.1,4.1.1

Page 50



Agenda Item 5
3.2.2. Strength 2: A group purchasing model for heat pumps is being piIotee\[DpﬁiﬂdliX 25/26

e Further information: The scheme will offer residents a trusted, group-buying model to
access competitively priced heat pumps from pre-vetted installers.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3,2.1,2.1.1,4.1,4.1.1

3.2.3. Strength 3: Several active and well-established community energy groups. Already delivering
energy advice, so ready to take customers deeper into retrofit support.

e Further information: Several active and well-established community energy groups are
operating in Surrey, already providing trusted energy advice and creating networks to
engage residents and provide retrofit guidance to increase uptake. Zero Carbon
Guildford’s Home Energy Advice Team (HEAT) delivered over 2,000 home visits since
December 2023 and has secured another two years’ funding to continue the service in
partnership with Circular Dorking and Energy Action Redhill and Reigate.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3, 2.1,2.1.1,2.1.2, 3.1, 3.2
3.2.4. Strength 4: Some housing archetype data

e Further information: Archetype data provides a foundation for identifying, at scale,
priority property types, allowing the tailoring of retrofit solutions and targeting of
interventions more effectively. This supports faster, evidence-based delivery.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3, 2.1,2.1.1,2.1.2, 3.1

3.2.5. Strength 5: Prior good collaboration with stakeholders around Surrey Retrofit Skills
Roadmap and Skills Bootcamps

e Further information: Previous collaboration demonstrates the ability to coordinate
partners and deliver targeted training, providing a foundation to scale up retrofit skills
provision quickly and effectively. The newly launched second phase of Bootcamps takes a
stronger focus on testing competency and improving employment outcomes for
graduates.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.2,4.1,4.1.1
3.2.6. Strength 6: Some success with hosting Energy Showcase Events

e Further information: Energy showcase events create a transparent, interactive forum
that builds trust and awareness, helping residents make informed retrofit choices. These
regular events offer residents the chance to quiz experts and see real-world examples.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3,2.1,2.1.1, 2.1.2,3.2
3.2.7. Strength 7: More households are opening their homes via Nesta’s Visit a Heat Pump scheme

e Further information: Hosted by Nesta, the Visit a Heat Pump scheme is an open-house
event hosting platform that lets residents see, hear and experience a working heat pump
installation and affords them the opportunity to ask practical questions about
performance, noise, running costs and maintenance, and installation experiences. This
approach builds trust and confidence in retrofit measures and supports informed
decision making. As of July 2025, there are 35 open homes registered across nearly all
parts of Surrey, meaning interested residents will not have to travel far to visit their
nearest.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 3.1

Page 51



Agenda Item 5

3.2.8. Strength 8: Local authorities can work well together e.g. on climate Aﬁ)l&&ﬂﬁilx 2

Further information: local authorities in Surrey have a track record of working well
together on climate and retrofit initiatives, creating a strong foundation for coordinated
action, shared resources, and consistent messaging.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1

3.2.9. Strength 9: Growing sector with lots of opportunities

Further information: The growth of the retrofit sector presents Surrey with an
opportunity to attract new businesses, investment, and skilled workers all supporting
local economic growth. The Skills Bootcamps backed by Surrey County Council and local
colleges are already training new installers, showing how sector growth creates jobs
while supporting faster retrofit roll-out.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.2, 1.3, 2.1

3.2.10. Strength 10: BUS uptake is growing and Government is removing non-financial barriers to

heat pump installs too

Further information: There were almost double the number of Boiler Upgrade Scheme
(BUS) redemptions (heat pump installs) in Surrey in 2024/25 compared to 2023/24.
Moreover, homeowners can now access the full £7,500 Boiler Upgrade Scheme grant for
heat pumps without having to install loft or cavity wall insulation first and, in May 2025,
planning permission barriers were reduced including the ‘1 metre boundary’ rule. This
has removed barriers, helping even more households switch to heat pumps in 2025/26.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1,2.1.1, 3.1, 4.1,4.1.1

3.2.11. Strength 11: Slight improvement in knowledge about heat pumps in recent years

Further information: Even small rises in public knowledge and familiarity of heat pumps
help speed retrofit by shifting more homeowners into the ‘ready-to-consider’ zone. With
around 329,000 (approximately 65%) of Surrey homes at SAP D or below, a modest
increase of homeowner knowledge could potentially mobilise tens of thousands of
additional households toward heat pump adoption. This is sorely needed as the monthly
rate of heat pump installations in Surrey will need to increase to be on average 40 times
higher over the next 25 years than it has been over the last 3 years of the BUS scheme.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 3.1, 3.2, 4.1, 4.1.1.

3.2.12. Strength 12: Performance on fuel poor and social housing grant schemes delivery

Further information: Successfully managing multi-million-pound funding programmes
shows systems are in place to deliver retrofit in Surrey, and there is scope for future
expansion. Examples include the £2.8m worth of upgrades delivered through HUG2; the
almost £7m being delivered in social housing through the Social Housing
Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) Wave 2.2; and the success in securing a combined £28.3m
via the Warm Homes Plan (£13.9m Local Grant and a total of £14.4m from the Social
Housing Fund, including match funding) to support energy efficiency updates to
thousands more properties. Other housing providers operating in the area are also
gaining experience delivering retrofit in their stock outside of Surrey.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 3.2

3.2.13. Strength 13: Good relationship between borough and district councils and social landlords

Further information: Surrey’s boroughs and social landlords have worked together to
secure funding, share property data, and streamline installations. A good relationship

Page 52



Agenda Item 5
between borough and district councils, and social landlords in Apﬂeh}dm janed—up
planning, faster project delivery, and coordinated retrofit programmes maximising
impact. Other benefits include the alignment of priorities, reduction of administrative
barriers, and ability to scale retrofit efforts effectively.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1,1.2,1.3,2.1,4.1,4.1.1

3.2.14. Strength 14: Quality controls ensuring good installers

3.2.15.

3.2.16.

3.2.17.

3.2.18.

Further information: All installers delivering work through previous Action Surrey
schemes must meet strict standards and have accreditation with bodies including MCS
and Trustmark. Solar Together and Furbnow installers are similarly vetted and undergo
comprehensive assessments. These controls mean Surrey residents accessing retrofit
measures through trusted schemes benefit from reliable installers, better-quality
outcomes, and recourse if issues arise. This provision increases public confidence,
reduces failure rates, and supports sustainable market growth.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 4.1, 4.1.2

Strength 15: Better data on heat pump and solar rollout, and EV chargers and batteries is
available through the SSEN and UKPN public data stores at substation level

Further information: This level of data provides granular insight into where low-carbon
technologies are being deployed, enabling targeted planning, faster capacity allocation,
and smarter rollout strategies across Surrey. Evidence based targeting can help
authorities plan smarter and prioritise investment.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.2

Strength 16: £38m of investment already secured via government grant or private

investment, excluding social housing.

Further information: The fact that £38m has already been leveraged for domestic retrofit
(excluding social housing) via local authorities’ climate change strategies shows that the
region has a proven ability to secure significant funding, coordinate delivery, and
mobilise retrofit at scale.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 3.2

Strength 17: Good Practice in Woking on heat networks can be a model for other towns

Further information: Woking’s heat network successes in terms of attracting funding, its
delivery and operation and pioneering nature is a potential blueprint for retrofit
Acceleration.

Response: none

Strength 18: Some councils have good relationships with social landlords

Further information: Some Boroughs and Districts have good relationships with social
landlords through historic joint working. These relationships can be built on to help to
ensure retrofit delivery is coordinated both locally and strategically, maximising impact
across social housing and aligning with Surrey’s broader climate goals.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 4.1, 4.1.1

Page 53



3.3. Weaknesses

3.3.1. Weakness

3.3.2. Weakness

3.3.3. Weakness

3.3.4. Weakness

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2

1: Hesitancy of local authorities to make decisions

Further information: Hesitancy among local authorities to make decisions slows down
the pace of retrofit delivery, creates uncertainty for supply chains, and risks missing
funding opportunities, holding back wider rollout. Surrey’s success in schemes like Solar
Together and HUG2 shows what’s possible with decisive leadership.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1,
2: Lack of cohesion of different local authorities’ separate plans.

Further information: In Surrey, boroughs, districts, and the county council have their own
climate and energy plans, which are often developed independently. Coordinated
county-wide retrofit action requires collective buy-in and alignment from every council,
otherwise, efforts could remain fragmented. A county-wide retrofit Plan that aligns with
existing local authority plans, whilst maximising the opportunities from Local
Government Reorganisation, can provide clear, shared priorities, consistent messaging,
and delivery pathways will address this weakness., shared priorities, consistent
messaging, and delivery pathways will address this weakness.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3, 2.1, 4.1
3: Lack of personnel within stakeholders (particularly local authorities)

Further information: A shortage of personnel, both within local authorities and the wider
retrofit supply chain limits capacity to plan, coordinate, and deliver retrofit schemes at
the necessary scale and pace, directly slowing progress. Issues including capacity gaps,
delivery bottlenecks, install capacity shortages, burnout and knowledge loss will prevail
unless personnel shortages are addressed.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,

4: Low take up of retrofit courses in Surrey; lack of understanding about the

barriers to take up

3.3.5. Weakness

3.3.6. Weakness

Further information: Low take-up of retrofit training courses, combined with insufficient
understanding of the barriers preventing participation, can limit workforce growth and
slow delivery capacity, making it harder to meet retrofit targets at scale.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.2, 3.2,4.1, 4.1.2
5: EPC ratings are unreliable

Further information: EPC ratings (Energy Performance Certificates) are often inaccurate,
or out of date, meaning retrofit decisions can be poorly targeted, funding may not reach
the right homes, and residents or landlords lack reliable information to act with
confidence. Supplementing EPCs with archetype data, in-home assessments, and
smarter diagnostics could help overcome this barrier.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2
6: EPC methodology is discredited for heat pumps and other renewables

Further information: The current EPC methodology often underestimates the
performance of heat pumps and other renewable technologies making them appear less
effective or cost-efficient than they are. This undermines public confidence, creates
misleading signals for homeowners and landlords, and can limit eligibility for funding
schemes tied to EPC ratings

Page 54



Agenda Item 5
e Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2 Appendlx 2

3.3.7. Weakness 7: Inconsistent training

e Further information: Inconsistent training provision undermines workforce quality, slows
retrofit delivery, increases installation risks, and reduces public trust; highlighting the
urgent need for standardised, high-quality training aligned with market needs.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.2, 4.1, 4.1.2

3.3.8. Weakness 8: Lack of finance offer for middle audience segment who are said to make up
80% of residents.

e Further information: The lack of accessible finance offers for Surrey’s middle-income
households which are estimated to make up around 80% of residents is a critical
weakness that slows mass retrofit uptake, limits market growth, and risks deepening
inequalities. Unlocking tailored finance solutions is essential to scale retrofit at pace.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 3.1

3.3.9. Weakness 9: High compliance requirements of grant schemes with lots of complexity

e Further information: The high complexity and strict compliance requirements in relation
to retrofit grant schemes creates significant barriers for residents, SMEs, and delivery
partners, slowing uptake, increasing administrative burdens, and undermining the pace
and scale of retrofit.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 3.2

3.3.10. Weakness 10: Surrey County Council has little direct control over private landlords and
limited relationship with social landlords, who have competing priorities

e Further information: Surrey County Council’s limited direct control over private landlords
and limited relationship with social landlords, combined with their competing
operational priorities, creates a fragmented retrofit landscape, making it harder to align
housing decarbonisation across tenures with county-wide climate goals and slowing
progress. Despite this, as per strength 18, Surrey County Council could build good
working relationships with both private landlords and social landlords in the region.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1
3.3.11. Weakness 11: Not all data is openly shared

e Further information: When organisations don’t share data, and there is limited open
access to rich housing stock data, it causes delays and obstructions which hamper
progress, drive up costs and add administrative burdens. All these add to the difficulty to
pursue a systemic approach to accelerating retrofit.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.2, 1.3
3.3.12. Weakness 12: Data quality when it comes to housing stock

e Further information: Poor housing stock data weakens retrofit efforts by making it
difficult to accurately identify property types, condition, tenure and energy performance,
leading to delays, the installation of inappropriate measures and inefficient use of
resources.

e Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3

Page 55



Agenda Item 5

3.3.13. Weakness 13: While many community groups are willing to parﬁcipa@m%(iuét@, they
are limited by capacity and resources and need support to professionalise.

Further information: Many community groups are enthusiastic about accelerating
retrofit and are willing to act as advocates, however their impact is constrained by
limited capacity and resources. Additional support for these groups may be required to
leverage their expertise and often trusted local voice.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 2.1, 2.1.2, 3.2

3.3.14. Weakness 14: Lack of vehicle to leverage private investment into sector to accelerate mass

uptake

3.4. Opportunities

Further information: The absence of a structured vehicle to leverage private investment
significantly limits the scale and pace of retrofit delivery. Without a clear, trusted
mechanism to attract and deploy private investment at scale, it is difficult to mobilise the
funding needed for mass retrofit, limiting market growth, stalling delivery beyond public
grant schemes, and slowing progress toward county-wide decarbonisation targets.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 3.2

3.4.1. Opportunity 1: Surrey councils engaging more private and social landlords

Further information: Engaging more private and social landlords across Surrey represents
a key opportunity to scale retrofit delivery, target priority homes, attract additional
funding, and support workforce growth. The expected introduction of a tightened (to
EPC C rather than EPC E) Minimum Energy Efficiency Standard (MEES) in 2026 by
Government can provide additional leverage provided LAs also receive proportionate
funding to enforce it.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3

3.4.2. Opportunity 2: Local authorities are a trusted brand

Further information: local authorities’ status as a trusted brand presents a significant
opportunity to drive retrofit uptake across Surrey; helping residents navigate the retrofit
market, boost confidence in measures, and build momentum towards large-scale
delivery. Solar Together Surrey, Action Surrey, and Surrey HEAT service are specific
examples of how Surrey’s local authorities have successfully used their trusted brands to
promote retrofit.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2,

3.4.3. Opportunity 3: Some conservation organisations are against solar farms and wind turbines.
Opportunity to engage with them to actively set some decarbonisation goals for themselves.

Further information: Opposition from influential groups limits the deployment of large-
scale renewable energy within Surrey, constrains decarbonisation options, and risks
polarising public debate. However, engaging these groups to take ownership of
alternative decarbonisation actions, including retrofit, presents an opportunity to align
landscape protection with climate goals and foster constructive collaboration.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1

Page 56



Agenda Item 5

3.4.4. Opportunity 4: UK law to be Net Zero by 2050 Appendix 2

Further information: Net Zero 2050 is a powerful unifying target. It provides a unifying
legal framework, creating the conditions for policy certainty, investment mobilisation,
and coordinated action over time. It enables Surrey to set credible interim targets,
breaking retrofit into manageable phases with measurable progress. Surrey County
Council (SCC) and other local stakeholders have made ambitious commitments to align
with Net Zero by 2050, with interim targets in SCC’s Climate Change Strategy that include
a commitment to reduce carbon emissions from housing by 66% by 2035.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 2.1

3.4.5. Opportunity 5: Huge potential retrofit market

Further information: Surrey’s large, diverse housing market with over 500,000 domestic
properties and substantial population size create a significant opportunity to scale
retrofit delivery, providing the critical mass needed to grow the supply chains, attract
investment, and normalise energy efficiency and low-carbon technologies across
communities.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1,1.2,3.1,4.1,4.1.1

3.4.6. Opportunity 6: Opportunity to connect social housing providers in the area, building
relationships for future collaboration

Further information: Connecting and building stronger relationships between social
housing providers in Surrey presents a key opportunity to coordinate retrofit delivery,
secure funding, grow the supply chain, and decarbonise social homes more efficiently,
laying the foundations for long-term, large-scale collaboration.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3, 4.1, 4.1.1

3.4.7. Opportunity 7: Community energy groups are well placed to reach people with bespoke
support from vulnerable to able to pay

Further information: Community energy groups across Surrey are uniquely placed to
reach residents with trusted, tailored retrofit support; whether vulnerable or able-to-
pay, providing a major opportunity to drive uptake by meeting people where they are
and building confidence in retrofit. The HEAT team’s securing of an additional 2 years’
funding is a fantastic opportunity to build on their over 2,000 home visits to date.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 3.2

3.4.8. Opportunity 8: Funded schemes for retrofit measures

Further information: Surrey’s deployment of multiple funded retrofit schemes in recent
years shines a light on what is possible when engaging with funded schemes and grants
focusing on helping fuel poor, inefficient households. The upcoming Warm Homes Plan
offers Surrey an opportunity to further accelerate domestic retrofit beyond what has
already been achieved, with a total £28.3m pledged across the Local Grant and Social
Housing Fund.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 2.1,2.1.2,3.2,4.1,4.1.1

3.4.9. Opportunity 9: Social value requirements in contracts between public sector and contractors

Further information: Surrey County Council builds in a minimum 10% social value
contribution into contracts. Requiring suppliers to deliver additional social, economic, or
environmental benefits through contracts creates a clear mechanism to align
procurement with Surrey’s retrofit and climate priorities, leveraging wider outcomes

Page 57



Agenda Item 5
such as local jobs, skills development, and community engagerﬁ\eﬂpendh)(ﬁﬂalongside
carbon reduction.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1,1.2,2.1,2.1.2,4.1,4.1.1

3.4.10. Opportunity 10: Regular accurate information made available in local press and events;
Stress case studies with real people

Further information: Providing consistent, accurate information through trusted local
channels, combined with relatable case studies from real Surrey residents builds public
confidence, normalises retrofit, and helps overcome misinformation, making it easier to
drive uptake of retrofit measures.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3, 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2

3.4.11. Opportunity 11: Opportunity to engage tenants in a democratic process around this

Further information: Engaging tenants in a democratic, participatory process around
retrofit decisions builds trust, increases acceptance of works, and empowers residents to
shape solutions that work for them. This could help reduce resistance, improve
satisfaction, and accelerate the delivery of social housing decarbonisation across Surrey.

Response: Actions under subgoal: 2.1

3.4.12. Opportunity 12: Forums that strengthen the link between skills providers with employers
such as the Surrey GSAP

Further information: Strengthening forums like the Surrey Green Skills Advisory Panel
(GSAP), which had its inaugural meeting in July 2025, connects skills providers with
employers and presents a major opportunity to accelerate retrofit by ensuring training is
aligned with market needs, building a reliable local workforce, and supporting scalable,
high-quality delivery across Surrey.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.2, 4.1, 4.1.2

3.4.13. Opportunity 13: Data identified as a key to understanding the use of low carbon
technologies in people’s homes through smart monitoring

Further information: Digital tools and smart data platforms provide real-time insights
into energy performance, enabling more targeted, efficient, and impactful retrofit
delivery across Surrey. Solutions like Switchee demonstrate how technology can support
proactive decision-making, tenant engagement, and better outcomes, particularly in
social housing.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3

3.4.14. Opportunity 14: Devolution may create efficiencies in terms of funding and lead to the right

decisions at the right level

Further information: Gaining greater control over funding and decision-making could
create significant efficiencies in retrofit delivery by simplifying access to resources,
aligning priorities, and enabling more strategic, coordinated use of public and private
investment, as well as more responsive, coherent, and accountable retrofit delivery at
pace. The Government’s Devolution White Paper promises a consolidated budget via
Integrated Settlement for new Mayoral Strategic Authorities (MSA) with devolution of
retrofit funding by 2028 and a clear role for the MSA in the wider energy system,
including Local Area Energy Planning (LAEP), heat network zoning, and green jobs and
skills coordination. In February 2025, Surrey was selected for the Local Government
Reorganisation fast track.

Page 58



Agenda Item 5
Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1 Appendlx 2

3.4.15. Opportunity 15: Broaden understanding of low Carbon Technologies. e.g. rainwater

3.4.16.

3.4.17.

3.4.18.

3.4.19.

harvesting, battery storage, solar PV, Heat pumps etc

Further information: Expanding public understanding of the full range of low carbon
technologies including solar PV, battery storage, heat pumps, and insulation empowers
more residents to take informed action, supports integrated whole-home retrofit, and
increases demand across Surrey, helping to normalise low-carbon living.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3, 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2,3.1,4.1

Opportunity 16: Devolution could lead to right decisions at right level

Further information: Surrey’s devolution plans; unitisation, mayoral leadership and
devolved funding could present a significant opportunity to accelerate retrofit in the
region, and could lead to more responsive, coherent, and accountable retrofit delivery at
pace.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1

Opportunity 17: Work by University of Surrey on intertwined stakeholder ownership model

for climate action that breaks down silos

Further information: Ongoing work being undertaken by the University of Surrey with
input from Surrey County Council, with the goal of a more linked up stakeholder
ownership model, namely ‘mesh governance’, for accelerating climate action and
breaking down silos (see Climate Action Network study on multi-level climate
governance in Surrey, examining how distributed decision-making across parishes,
boroughs, and county can mesh together more effectively).

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 4.1

Opportunity 18: To use this as an opportunity to encourage an improvement in data quality

of housing stock

Further information: Retrofit programmes create a valuable opportunity to improve the
quality, consistency, and completeness of housing stock data. This provides the
intelligence needed to better target future retrofit, prioritise investment, track progress,
and plan area-based delivery more efficiently across Surrey.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3

Opportunity 19: Warm Homes Local Grant (WHLG) allocation is an opportunity to expand

fuel poor offer, with longer term programme (3 years) announced, that should be slightly

more straightforward to administer, and with potential positive spillover for wider

programme

Further information: The WHLG provides Surrey with a new, multi-year funding stream to
support fuel-poor households with energy efficiency improvements. Its longer
timeframe, simplified administration, and potential to complement wider retrofit
schemes make it a strategic opportunity to tackle fuel poverty and generate momentum
for broader retrofit uptake across the county.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3, 3.2

Page 59



3.5. Threats

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2

3.5.1. Threat 1: Community groups lack a mandate to operate in this space and without a mandate

there is no power or funding.

Further information: Community groups are well placed to engage residents and support
retrofit, but without a formal mandate such as recognised roles in delivery programmes,
clear political backing, or access to funding, their ability to contribute is limited. This
weakens Surrey’s resource capacity, and ability to build public trust, drive behaviour
change, and deliver retrofit at the neighbourhood level.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3, 2.1,2.1.1, 2.1.2, 3.2

3.5.2. Threat 2: Social landlords prioritising other elements over this work due to a lack of

resources

Further information: social landlords face competing pressures. Prioritising other
pressures over retrofit due to resource constraints could delay the decarbonisation of
social housing in Surrey, limit funding uptake, and weaken retrofit delivery and progress
towards the county’s climate targets.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3, 4.1,4.1.2

3.5.3. Threat 3: Inconsistent quality assurance/ checks in place

Further information: Inconsistent quality assurance (QA) and checks across retrofit
schemes undermine installation standards, reduce resident trust, and risk poor
performance outcomes resulting in slow uptake, damage to the sector’s reputation, and
increased likelihood of retrofit delivery stagnating.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1

3.5.4. Threat 4: Plans are derailed by inaccurate data re. housing stock

Further information: Inaccurate, outdated, or incomplete data on Surrey’s housing stock
undermines effective planning, targeting, and delivery of retrofit programmes; leading to
wasted resources, missed opportunities, and delays in scaling up home retrofit.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.3

3.5.5. Threat 5: Some Gas Safe qualified engineers are actively dissuading residents from fitting

heat pumps; a national problem

Further information: Gas Safe registered engineers are a trusted source for heating
advice, especially for boiler replacements. When they actively dissuade residents from
adopting heat pumps, whether due to lack of knowledge, vested interests, or
misconceptions, it undermines public confidence in low-carbon heating and slows heat
pump uptake.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 4.1

3.5.6. Threat 6: Active lobbying by the gas industry in the press has a major impact on residents’
appetite for low carbon technology

Further information: Active lobbying and media campaigns promoting fossil fuel options
over low carbon alternatives create confusion and undermine public confidence, posing
a significant threat to retrofit uptake and slowing retrofit progress.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2

Page 60



Agenda Item 5

3.5.7. Threat 7: Surrey doesn’t yet have a Local Area Energy Plan Appendix 2

Further information: The absence of a Local Area Energy Plan (LAEP) is a key threat to
accelerating retrofit, limiting the ability to strategically target interventions, align with
grid capacity, and plan infrastructure upgrades, which increases costs, delays delivery,
and reduces market confidence in low-carbon transition programmes.

Response: Actions under subgoal: 1.3

3.5.8. Threat 8: Devolution uncertainties

Further information: Devolution uncertainties present a threat to accelerating retrofit by
delaying strategic decisions, weakening collaboration, reducing market confidence, and
risking disruption to funding and delivery structures. Uncertainty limits Surrey’s ability to
progress initiatives like LAEPs.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3

3.5.9. Threat 9: Council/public sector funding landscape is always uncertain, which constrains

ability of councils to invest own money, leading to overreliance on grants

3.5.10. Threat 10:

3.5.11. Threat 11:

Further information: Uncertainty in public sector funding can constrain public sector
funding and investment in retrofit, leading to overreliance on short-term, competitive
grants. Stable, long-term funding would enable coordinated, area-based delivery.
Fragmented delivery caused by inconsistent funding can reduce public awareness, trust,
and political will to prioritise retrofit.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 1.3
Schemes starting and stopping

Further information: The frequent starting and stopping of retrofit schemes undermines
delivery momentum, damages public trust, weakens the supply chain, and prevents
scalable, efficient retrofit programmes. Short-lived schemes make it extremely difficult to
implement coordinated, long-term neighbourhood or whole-street retrofit programmes
and increase delivery costs.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 1.1, 3.2,4.1,4.1.1

OFGEM pricing rules continue to make heat pumps only slightly cheaper than gas

boilers without time of use tariffs

Further information: Current pricing rules which keep electricity costs high relative to
gas, limit the economic case for heat pumps. Reforming levy structures alongside wider
access to time-of-use tariffs, is critical to unlocking affordable, large-scale heat pump
uptake.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 3.2

3.5.12. Threat 12: Homeowners don't want to take out loans for retrofit

Further information: In Surrey, where homeownership rates are high and many residents
are financially comfortable, the reluctance of homeowners to take on personal loans for
retrofit is a significant barrier. Even among affluent groups, resistance to borrowing slows
uptake of retrofit measures, limiting the potential to decarbonise Surrey’s large owner-
occupied housing stock.

Response: Actions under subgoals: 3.1, 3.2

Page 61



Agenda Item 5

4. Shared Principles Appendix 2

4.1. Introduction

4.1.1.

4.1.2.

4.1.3.

During Workshop 2, participants engaged in a systems simulation game to explore principles and
strategies for collaborative retrofit initiatives in Surrey. The exercise highlighted challenges such as
siloed actions, lack of coordination, and minimal strategic oversight in Round 1. This evolved into
greater collaboration, shared goals, and efficient resource use in Round 2. Groups then used this
learning to reflect on real-life changes they want to see in Surrey’s retrofit system.

Key principles for a better retrofit system were found, including equity, sustainability, collaboration,
and accountability. Priorities found included shared vision, workforce upskilling, community
engagement, targeted funding, and innovative financing models. The follow-up discussions
emphasised leveraging local resources, fostering partnerships, and applying insights to real-world
challenges to drive systemic change and accelerate retrofitting efforts effectively.

These shared principles will guide all activity by signatories to the Plan. The governance agreements
between signatories to the Plan will formally ensure their importance. The principles below have
influenced the goals and actions and are critical in achieving the vision.

4.2. Principles Selection

4.2.1.

4.2.2.

During Workshop 2, participants engaged in a systems simulation game to explore principles and
strategies for collaborative retrofit initiatives in Surrey. The simulation aimed to create an engaging
and collaborative setting for participants to: Simulate teamwork in a dynamic environment, explore
actionable ideas relevant to Surrey, test different approaches to change, identify key priorities, and
foster experimentation and creativity in problem-solving. The exercise highlighted challenges like the
need for: greater levels of coordination, a common goal to avoid action in self-interest and
coordination of efforts in round 1. This evolved into greater collaboration, shared goals, and efficient
resource use and a reflection that a coordinating body is required to direct retrofit in Round 2.
Groups then used this learning to reflect on real-life changes they want to see in Surrey’s retrofit
system.

Key principles for a better retrofit system were identified, including: collaborative, inclusive, people-
centred, ambitious and pragmatic and trustworthy, reliable and we act with integrity.

. Outcomes

5.1. Outcomes ldentified

5.1.1.

During Workshop 3, time permitted for participants to engage in only a relatively short exercise to
begin to develop potential Outcomes, with the outputs of this exercise listed below. It was
acknowledged they would require further refinement.

e Consortiums working well to deliver efficiencies, expectations and built trusting
relationships

e Coherent menu of grant schemes for all requiring them
e Good understanding of grant schemes across system

e Finance options available for supply chain development and training

Page 62



Agenda Item 5
e Coordinated homeowner communications being delivered by n@t@tpﬂﬂdé)ﬁ Zartners
including public health

e Exponential growth of interest in funded schemes and installation of measures
e People know where to go for retrofit advice and have confidence in the advice
e People feel the benefits of retrofit are relevant to them and worth the hassle

e People aware of and able to access finance and grants i.e. feel empowered to do
something to help themselves

e People talking about the positives of retrofit
e Private investment in retrofit is unlocked and being made

e Residents actively accessing independent advice (technical, grants, finance) through a
single point

e Suitably sized and skilled local supply chain
e Diverse supply chain

5.1.2. These outputs were then summarised into a more concise set of Outcomes for the first draft of the
main Plan document, with the results below:

e Increased trust, knowledge and confidence
e Effective partnerships

e Coordinated delivery

e Expanded resources

e Sustainable sector growth

e Inclusive empowerment

e  Future-fit homes

5.1.3. These were then further revised once more, with oversight of the Interim Steering Group, to
produce the final set of Outcomes in the main Plan document.

5.2. Outcomes Tracking

5.2.1. See the main Plan document for suggested quantitative KPls and qualitative metrics.

5.3. Monitoring, Evaluation, Accountability and Learning (MEAL) Framework

5.3.1. Akey part of delivering the Plan is determining what is working and what isn’t working and
developing amplification or rectification plans respectively. System change can be difficult to monitor
and be confident of the connection between cause and effect. However, it is important to try and
understand the impact being made and report this to stakeholders and external bodies such as
funders.

5.3.2. A MEAL Framework is a structured approach to track progress and assess the effectiveness of an
intervention. It outlines how data will be collected, analysed, and used to inform decision-making
and improve outcomes. The framework helps ensure that efforts are on track, resources are used
efficiently, and intended results are achieved.

Page 63



5.3.3.

Agenda Item 5
A MEAL framework will need to be developed for the Plan based on the mAp:penthbEVe and in
appendix 1 a template framework is provided for completion. A recommended framework is the
Build Upon framework which UKGBC and the European GBC co-developed to help cities and local
authorities consistently measure the broad benefits of retrofit. The Interim Steering Group will
oversee the development of this framework. This will include agreeing an appropriate progress
reporting and communication schedule.

6. Goals and Actions

6.1. Introduction

6.1.1.

6.1.2.

6.1.3.

The following goals and sub-goals have been determined by the workshop stakeholders:
1. Build a collaborative structure to coordinate working practices
1.1. Improve coordination of funding mechanisms
1.2. Improve coordination of local supply chain
1.3. Improve coordination of demand generation activities
2. Build confidence in retrofit through clear information, trusted advice & guidance
2.1. Improve awareness, understanding and confidence in all households
2.1.1.Build confidence in households facing lower barriers
2.1.2.Build confidence in households facing higher barriers
3. Facilitate access to flexible, accessible funding & finance
3.1. Enable those who are facing lower barriers to access finance to undertake retrofit
3.2. Improve access for households facing higher barriers to funded schemes
4. Develop a skilled, trusted and stable local supply chain & skills base
4.1. Support and grow our local supply chain and skills base through sector collaboration
4.1.1.Support & grow local supply chain
4.1.2.Support and improve local skills base

Note, see the Definitions section in the main Plan document for more information on how
‘households facing lower/higher barriers’ are defined.

The Pilot team took the findings from Workshop 2 and started drafting potential actions reflecting
where stakeholders want to be, the vision, and the agreed priorities and principles. Indicative actions
were presented, refined and reviewed at Workshop 3. Following the conclusion of the three
workshops, the MCS Foundation and Surrey County Council leads reviewed the actions outputted by
the workshops and agreed on actions to take forward.

Each action has the following further information:

e CONTEXT/ ASUMPTIONS: The problem or issue the action is planning to affect and the
assumptions made to justify the desired action

e APPROACH: High-level plan of how the action could be completed

e RESOURCES: Estimated resources needed to deliver the action in terms of money, roles
and stakeholders involved

Page 64


https://ukgbc.org/resources/build-upon-framework-capturing-the-benefits-of-building-renovation/

Agenda Item 5
e LINKS: Actions that need to be completed beforehand or are nﬁnp'p&lﬂdh)(ed?

e STRATEGIC FIT: Which element of the SWOT the action responds to

e DIRECT BENEFICIARIES: Who the ‘direct beneficiaries’ that will see the primary benefit of
the action are

6.2. Priority Actions

6.2.1. The Plan provides a high-level list of actions to be completed to achieve each goal. Information is
given on the actions that need to be completed prior to an action (pre-actions or ‘PA’).

However, stakeholders will need to develop a more detailed timeline at the appropriate time. Initial
recommended priority actions are set out in the main Plan document with additional detail below as
appropriate.

6.2.1.1. Set up interim steering group
6.1.1.1.1. See main Plan document
6.2.1.2. Backbone organisation

6.2.1.2.1. The effective delivery of the Plan will require it to be ‘held’ by one organisation which
is referred to as the ‘backbone’ organisation. A backbone organisation is a ‘dedicated
entity that provides support and coordination for collaborative initiatives aimed at
achieving a shared goal, often within a community or sector. It acts as a central hub,
facilitating communication, strategy development, and resource mobilization among
participating organisations.” The Plan requires collaboration and cooperation to
succeed and assumes democratic decision-making processes. However, it is likely
progress will be difficult without the backbone organisation.

6.2.1.2.2. During Workshop 3 it was agreed that in the medium-to-longer term a ‘hybrid model’
would be pursued whereby a new entity would perform the operations of the
‘backbone organisation’, succeeding SCC and the Interim Steering Group, and will
mobilise the Plan implementation at pace. The hybrid model may combine an entity
such as a Community Interest Company (CIC) for oversight and strategic direction and
to provide the functions of backbone organisation; a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
for project-specific investment and management; and a forum(s) for wider
consultation with the stakeholder network. As above, the Interim Steering Group will
be tasked with agreeing, implementing and communicating this successor structure
with a clear route explained on how the wider network can contribute.

6.2.1.2.3. In the short term, this role and the interim backbone organisation will be taken on by
Surrey County Council.

6.2.1.3. Roles

6.2.1.3.1. See main Plan document

6.2.1.4. MEAL Framework

6.2.1.4.1. Section 5.3 provides guidance on setting up a Monitoring, Evaluation, Accountability
and Learning (MEAL) framework.

Page 65



Agenda Item 5
6.2.1.5. Warm Homes funding Appendlx 2

6.2.1.5.1. See main Plan document. It is important to convene grant recipient organisations to
determine project scope and look for ways to work together. Such activity could be
through coordinated procurements, joint procurements, centralised delivery teams,
partnership delivery or working in the same delivery locations. See action 3.2D for
more information.

6.2.1.6. Forums

6.2.1.6.1. See main Plan document
6.2.1.7. Data Management
6.2.1.7.1. See main Plan document. The work can utilise best practice frameworks such as LETI*

or the Build Upon framework? to understand the use of low carbon technologies in
people’s homes.

6.3. Sub-goal 1.1: Improve coordination of funding mechanisms

6.3.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 8, 12,13, 18
o Weaknesses: 1,2, 3,9, 10, 11, 12, 13

o Opportunities: 1,2,4,5

6.3.2. Action 1.1 A: Create Grant Scheme Support and Coordination role or allocate to existing
6.3.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Resource is needed to ensure funding opportunities are realised by as many
organisations in the locality as possible and that efficiencies are maximised

o Coordination of grant schemes can achieve better outcomes

o Grant schemes are available that support achievement of the vision

6.3.2.2. Approach: Backbone organisation to develop job description, agree with Interim Steering
Group, consult with stakeholders, and agree whether role will be recruited to or allocated
to existing.

6.3.2.3. Resources:

o Money: c. £40k per year
o Roles: Backbone organisation

o Stakeholder(s): All

L https://www.leti.uk/
2 https://ukgbc.org/resources/build-upon-framework-capturing-the-benefits-of-building-renovation/

Page 66



https://www.leti.uk/
https://ukgbc.org/resources/build-upon-framework-capturing-the-benefits-of-building-renovation/

Agenda Item 5
6.3.2.4, Links: Appendix 2

o Pre-action(s): None
6.3.2.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 12,13

o Opportunities: 1

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, social landlords

6.3.3. Action 1.1 B: Conduct stakeholder mapping of organisations involved in delivery of funding

programmes
6.3.3.1. Context/ Assumptions:
o Several organisations in the locality are involved in funded retrofit programmes
but there isn’t a central database of this knowledge
o Understanding who is delivering funded retrofit activity will help to deliver
better outcomes
6.3.3.2. Approach: Grant Scheme Support and Coordination role supported by Research & Data

role to conduct stakeholder assessment (see priority roles in 7.2.1.1), review with Interim
Steering Group and then all stakeholders and put in place processes to ensure continual
flow of information going forward.

6.3.3.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Roles: Grant Scheme Support and Coordination, Research & Data roles

o Stakeholders: Community energy organisations, health, local authorities, social
landlords

6.3.3.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.1A
6.3.3.5. Strategic fit:

o Opportunities: 1

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, social landlords

6.3.4. Action 1.1 C: Set up forum for local authorities and social landlords to share knowledge and
build collaborations

6.3.4.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Local authorities and social landlords are currently involved with the majority of
retrofit activity

o Aforum can be an effective way to exchange information and build
collaborations

o Collaboration and sharing knowledge deliver better outcomes for all

Page 67



6.3.4.2.

6.3.4.3.

6.3.4.4.

6.3.4.5.

Agenda Item 5
Approach: Grant Scheme Support and Coordination role uses ianlpapi@[’fdJl)( aZtion 1.1B
to develop forum, acts as secretariat for forum, develops draft terms and conditions,
approved by Interim Steering Group and forum membership, with data collected and
disseminated by Research & Data role. Terms of Reference should ensure forum
membership is regularly reviewed to ensure inclusivity.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Roles: Grant Scheme Support and Coordination, Research & Data roles
o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, social landlords
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.1B
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 8, 12,13, 18
o Weaknesses: 2, 3, 10
o Opportunities: 1, 6, 8,9, 19
o Threats: 2

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, social landlords

6.3.5. Action 1.1 D: Develop agreement on how stakeholders can coordinate delivery of grant

schemes to maximise benefits

6.3.5.1.

6.3.5.2.

6.3.5.3.

6.3.5.4.

6.3.5.5.

Context/ Assumptions:
o Coordination of grant schemes can achieve better outcomes
o An agreement can be found to enable the achievement of better outcomes
o Funding agreement terms will allow for coordination activity

Approach: Grant Scheme Support and Coordination role to consult with grant delivery
stakeholders and develop coordination plan, agree with Interim Steering Group, consult
with stakeholders and implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Roles: Grant Scheme Support and Coordination role

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, health, local authorities, social
landlords

Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.1C
Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 8,12, 13, 18

o Weaknesses: 1, 2,9,10,11, 12, 13

Page 68



Agenda Item 5
o Opportunities: 1,4, 5,6, 8,9, 14, 16, 19 Appendlx 2

o Threats: 2,8, 10

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, local authorities, social landlords

6.4. Sub-goal 1.2: Improve coordination of local supply chain

6.4.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 5, 8,9, 13, 15
o Weaknesses: 1, 3,4,7,9, 11

o Opportunities: 5,9, 12

6.4.2. Action 1.2 A: Create Retrofit Supply Chain Development role or allocate to existing
6.4.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Resource is needed to ensure the supply chain capacity is increased in line with
demand and quality is improved

o Interventions can be made which help to support growth in supply chain
capacity and improve capacity

6.4.2.2. Approach: Backbone organisation to develop job description, agree with Interim Steering
Group, consult with stakeholders, and agree whether role will be recruited to or allocated
to existing.

6.4.2.3. Resources:

o Money: c. £40k per year
o Roles: Backbone organisation
o Stakeholder(s): All
6.4.2.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): None
6.4.2.5. Strategic fit:
o Opportunities: 5

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, training providers

6.4.3. Action 1.2 B: Set up forum for training providers and supply chain to be updated and
feedback on future activity

6.4.3.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o By bringing together training providers and supply chain we can improve
outcomes

o Aforum can be an effective way to exchange information and build
collaborations

Page 69



Agenda Item 5
o Collaboration and sharing knowledge deliver better ouA@pefddil)( 2

6.4.3.2. Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain role uses information from Co-design phase and further
research by the Research & Data role to develop forum, acts as secretariat for forum,
develops draft terms and conditions, approved by Interim Steering Group and forum
membership. Terms of Reference should ensure forum membership is regularly reviewed
to ensure inclusivity.

6.4.3.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain and Research & Data roles
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, training providers
6.4.3.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A
6.4.3.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 5, 8,9
o Weaknesses: 4,7, 9,
o Opportunities: 5,9, 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, training providers

6.4.4. Action 1.2 C: Create Research & Data role or allocate to existing
6.4.4.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Resource is needed to research best practice and system information and collate
and process data

o Interventions can be made which can increase the flow of system intelligence

o Knowledge and data can improve outcomes

6.4.4.2. Approach: Backbone organisation to develop job description, agree with Interim Steering
Group, consult with stakeholders, and agree whether role will be recruited to or allocated
to existing.

6.4.4.3. Resources:

o Money: c. £40k per year
o Role(s): Backbone organisation
o Stakeholder(s): All
6.4.4.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): None
6.4.4.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 4, 15
o Weaknesses: 11, 12

o Opportunities: 4, 10, 13

Page 70



Agenda Item 5
o Threats: 4 Appendlx 2

6.4.5. Action 1.2 D: Gather information/data on demand and supply to help to ensure balance
6.4.5.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Stakeholders across the system have data which when gathered can be used to
determine levels of demand and supply

o Demand data can be used to infer optimum levels of supply required

o  Working to balance supply and demand can improve outcomes

6.4.5.2. Approach: Research & Data role to conduct stakeholder assessment to determine potential

sources of data, engage with sources to understand what’s possible, develop plan for
review and approval by Interim Steering Group and implement.

6.4.5.3. Resources:

o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Research & Data role

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, health, local authority, social
landlords, supply chain, training providers

6.4.5.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2C
6.4.5.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 5, 15

o Weaknesses: 11

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain

6.4.6. Action 1.2 E: Conduct stakeholder assessment of employer representative bodies

6.4.6.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Organisations such as chambers of commerce, Federation of Small Businesses,

Business Leaders Forum can be useful in disseminating information to support
delivery of supply chain outcomes

o Intermediary organisations can be engaged with

6.4.6.2. Approach: Research & Data role research intermediary organisations, Retrofit Supply Chain
role engages with organisations and develops and implements collaboration plans.

6.4.6.3. Resources:

o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain and Research & Data roles

o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain
6.4.6.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2A

Page 71



Agenda Item 5
6.4.6.5. Strategic fit: Appendlx 2

o Strengths: 5
o Weaknesses: 4

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain

6.4.7. Action 1.2 F: Develop and deliver plan to promote local opportunities via local employer
representative bodies

6.4.7.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Organisations such as chambers of commerce, Federation of Small Businesses,
Business Leaders Forum can be useful in disseminating information to support
delivery of supply chain outcomes

6.4.7.2. Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain role disseminates information on retrofit supply chain
opportunities via employer representative bodies.

6.4.7.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain role
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain
6.4.7.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2E
6.4.7.5. Strategic fit:
o Weaknesses: 4
o Opportunities: 5,9

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain

6.5. Sub-goal 1.3: Improve coordination of demand generation activities

6.5.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 1,2,3,4,6,8,9,13
o Weaknesses: 1,2,3,9,11, 12
o Opportunities: 1, 6, 10, 13, 15, 18, 19

o Threats: 1,2,4,8,9
6.5.2. Action 1.3 A: Set up forum for stakeholders involved in market development/ engagement

activities

6.5.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

Page 72



6.5.2.2.

6.5.2.3.

6.5.2.4.

6.5.2.5.

Agenda Item 5

o Arange of organisations are engaging households to dApmmdéx iRtaking
up retrofit measures or broader home improvement measures which could be

utilised

o By bringing together those involved in market development activities we can
improve outcomes

o  Aforum can be an effective way to exchange information and build
collaborations

o Collaboration and sharing knowledge deliver better outcomes for all

Approach: Retrofit Market Development and Research & Data role to conduct stakeholder
assessment of local system to determine who is involved in activities, engage and consult
on forum format and terms of reference, prepare draft plan and terms of reference and
agree with Interim Steering Group and stakeholders, then implement. Terms of Reference
should ensure forum membership is regularly reviewed to ensure inclusivity.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development and Research & Data role

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities, social landlords

Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2C, 2.1A
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 1, 2,3,8,9,13
o Weaknesses: 2
o Opportunities: 1, 6, 19

o Direct beneficiaries: Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities, social landlords

6.5.3. Action 1.3 B: Develop agreement on ways of working to ensure clear communication with

householders

6.5.3.1.

6.5.3.2.

6.5.3.3.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Alack of clarity and consistency across system communications to households is
reducing efficiencies and hindering achievement of better outcomes

o Stakeholders involved in communications can agree a way of working together
o Agreeing on ways of working together can improve outcomes

Approach: Research & Data role to research national best practice, Retrofit Market
Development to then consult with stakeholders to develop options paper, agree with
Interim Steering Group preferred options, agree with stakeholders and set up and start
pilot.

Resources:

o Money: To be determined

Page 73



Agenda Item 5
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development and Research &Aapapeﬂdm 2

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities, social landlords

6.5.3.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.3A
6.5.3.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3, 8, 13
o Weaknesses: 1, 2,3,9,11, 12
o Opportunities: 1, 10, 19
o Threats: 1

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, community energy organisations, community
organisations, health, local authorities, social landlords

6.5.4. Action 1.3 C: Convene stakeholders involved in Surrey Adapt (Resilience), Local Area Energy
Plan, Surrey Skills Plan and other linked strategic areas to ensure alighnment

6.5.4.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Several strategic areas, such as the Surrey Adapt strategy, the Local Area Energy
Plan, Heat Network Zoning, the Surrey Skills Plan, Fuel Poverty Strategy, and the
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, have overlap with the Retrofit Strategic Action
Plan; by ensuring alignment, we can harness opportunities for collaboration and
greater efficiencies in delivery across joint priorities.

6.5.4.2. Approach: Retrofit Market Development role to engage with initiatives and determine
potential areas for collaboration, consult with relevant stakeholders, agree plan and
implement.

6.5.4.3. Resources:

o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, DNOs, training providers, health
6.5.4.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.3A
6.5.4.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 8, 17

o Weaknesses: 1, 3

o Opportunities: 4, 14

o Threats: 7

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, DNOs, training providers, health

Page 74



Agenda Item 5
6.5.5. Action 1.3 D: Conduct stakeholder assessment of those within healtwq@ﬂ&rﬂldit)(:czld

benefit from retrofit activity
6.5.5.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o There is activity within the health sector that overlaps with the Retrofit Strategic
Action Plan and has shared desired outcomes

6.5.5.2. Approach: Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development roles to conduct stakeholder
assessment of health system and produce report for Interim Steering Group.

6.5.5.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development and Research & Data roles
o Stakeholder(s): Health, local authorities
6.5.5.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2C, 2.1A
6.5.5.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 8
o Opportunities: 19

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, public health

6.5.6. Action 1.3 E: Convene and coordinate with Public Health, Social Care and Integrated Care
Services to strengthen the enabling environment for retrofit and create a shared language,
work and understanding

6.5.6.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o There is activity within the health sector that overlaps with the Retrofit Strategic
Action Plan and has shared desired outcomes

o Collaboration can deliver better outcomes for all

6.5.6.2. Approach: Research & Data role to research best practice, Retrofit Market Development
role to work with stakeholders to determine areas for coordination and collaboration,
develop plan and agree with Interim Steering Group and relevant stakeholders and
implement.

6.5.6.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development and Research & Data roles
o Stakeholder(s): Health, local authorities
6.5.6.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.3D
6.5.6.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 8

Page 75



Agenda Item 5
o Weaknesses: 2,3 Appendlx 2

o Threats: 8,9

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, local authorities, public health

6.5.7. Action 1.3 F: Conduct analysis on key funding gaps and opportunities, non-financial barriers

(e.g. grid capacity, data) and policy and communicate findings to stakeholders

6.5.7.1.

6.5.7.2.

6.5.7.3.

6.5.7.4.

6.5.7.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o By understanding the range of barriers to increasing rates of retrofit, actions can
be developed to minimise their effect on the system

o By determining the opportunities that, for example, Heat Network Zoning & the
Local Area Energy Plan will unlock stakeholders can ensure appropriate
coordination of retrofit investment and action across Surrey.

Approach: Research & Data role to consult with stakeholders and build picture of funding
gaps, opportunities and barriers, work with Retrofit Market Development to prepare report
and disseminate to stakeholders.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development and Research & Data roles
o Stakeholder(s): All
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2C, 1.3A, 2.1A
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3,13, 15, 17
o Weaknesses: 2,5,6,11,12
o Opportunities: 4, 10, 13, 14, 15, 18
o Threats: 2, 4

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, social landlords

6.6. Sub-goal 2.1: Improve awareness, understanding and confidence in all households

6.6.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):

o Strengths: 1,2,3,4,6,7,8,9,10,11, 13
o Weaknesses: 1, 2,5,6,9, 13
o Opportunities: 2,3,4,7,8,9, 10, 15,17

o Threats: 1,3,5,6, 11

Page 76



Agenda Item 5
6.6.2. Action 2.1 A: Create Retrofit Market Development role or allocate td&pﬁ&@dlx 2

6.6.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Resource is needed to help develop and deliver actions to increase demand for
retrofit measures

o Interventions can be made which help to support growth in demand

6.6.2.2. Approach: Backbone organisation to develop job description, agree with Interim Steering
Group, consult with stakeholders, and agree whether role will be recruited to or allocated
to existing.

6.6.2.3. Resources:

o Money: c. £40k per year
o Role(s): Backbone organisation
o Stakeholder(s): All
6.6.2.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): None
6.6.2.5. Strategic fit:
o Weaknesses: 3

o Direct beneficiaries: Community organisations, local authorities, social landlords

6.6.3. Action 2.1 B: Develop agreement between organisations engaging homeowners to
coordinate activity and consistent messaging

6.6.3.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Arange of organisations are engaging households to develop interest in taking
up retrofit measures or broader home improvement measures which could be
utilised

o By coordinating activity, better outcomes can be achieved

6.6.3.2. Approach: Retrofit Market Development role to consult with relevant stakeholders and
understand activity, determine areas of potential improvement/coordination, agree plan
with stakeholders and Interim Steering Group and implement.

6.6.3.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities, social landlords

6.6.3.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 2.1A
6.6.3.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 3, 8,13, 18

o Weaknesses: 2, 3, 13
Page 77



Agenda Item 5
o Opportunities: 2, 3,4, 6,7, 10 Appendlx 2

o Threats: 1

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, community organisations, health,
local authorities

6.6.4. Action 2.1 C: Create single brand for retrofit support and advice in Surrey

6.6.4.1.

6.6.4.2.

6.6.4.3.

6.6.4.4.

6.6.4.5.

Context/ Assumptions:
o Asingle brand can improve communication effectiveness with householders
o Assumes a single brand can be agreed by system stakeholders

o Should include a review of the local/national quality assurance and remediation
regime, and promote positive case studies and good practice to mitigate risks of
poor retrofit.

Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Market Development
role to then prepare business case and engage stakeholders to secure agreement on way
forward, develop plan and agree with Interim Steering Group, deliver plan.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities, private landlords, social landlords

Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1B
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3, 8,13, 18
o Weaknesses: 13
o Opportunities: 6, 10, 17
o Threats: 1, 3

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, local authorities, community
organisations, health, private landlords, social landlords

6.6.5. Action 2.1 D: Create General Retrofit Support Service to provide advice and triage via
website, email and phone

6.6.5.1.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Providing a central advice service can help to increase engagement with retrofit
by homeowners and households and deliver action

o A support service can be delivered

Page 78



6.6.5.2.

6.6.5.3.

6.6.5.4.

6.6.5.5.

Agenda Item 5
Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice repoApf)@ﬁtd'leEt
Development role to prepare options paper and agree with Interim Steering Group, then
consult with stakeholders, agree preferred plan and implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities, private landlords, social landlords

Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1C
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3, 8,13, 18
o Threats: 1

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, local authorities, community
organisations, health, private landlords, social landlords

6.6.6. Action 2.1 E: Prepare plan for enforcement of Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (e.g.

outreach activities, landlord register)

6.6.6.1.

6.6.6.2.

6.6.6.3.

6.6.6.4.

6.6.6.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o The Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) in the private rented sector
are expected to be tightened to a minimum energy rating of C (rather than E in
its existing form) in the short to medium term

o This regulation can act as a stimulator of retrofit activity within the private rental
market but requires enforcement

o Initiatives can be delivered to leverage the regulatory change and deliver better
outcomes

Approach: Retrofit Market Development role to conduct stakeholder assessment of local
authorities and private rental sector to determine points of contact, research activity under
previous MEES round, Research & Data role to determine best practice nationally, Retrofit
Market Development role to prepare options paper and consult with stakeholders, agree
way forward and confirm with Interim Steering Group.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities (Trading Standards and/or Environmental
Health), private landlords, social landlords

Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1A

Strategic fit:

Page 79



Agenda Item 5
Strengths: 8, 11, 13 Appendlx 2

Weaknesses: 3,5, 6,11, 14
Opportunities: 2

Direct beneficiaries: Tenants, local authorities, community organisations, health,
private landlords

6.6.7. Action 2.1 F: Map and develop network of trusted community intermediaries, e.g. climate

action groups, faith groups

6.6.7.1.

6.6.7.2.

6.6.7.3.

6.6.7.4.

6.6.7.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o

o

Community organisations have levels of trust with residents that can be
mobilised for the promotion of and engagement with retrofit measures

Many people lack trust and confidence in retrofit measures and schemes to
deliver measures

Community organisations can be mapped and understood

Approach: Research & Data role to conduct stakeholder assessment exercise supported by
Retrofit Market Development role and produce report for the Interim Steering Group and
then wider dissemination.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development role
o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations,
health, local authorities
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1A

Strategic fit:

o

o

Strengths: 3
Weaknesses: 13
Opportunities: 2, 7
Threats: 1

Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, local authorities, community
organisations, health

6.6.8. Action 2.1 G: Create forum of community organisations to support retrofit activities

6.6.8.1.

Context/ Assumptions:

o

Community organisations have levels of trust with residents that can be
mobilised for the promotion of and engagement with retrofit measures

Many people lack trust and confidence in retrofit measures and schemes to
deliver measures

Page 80



Agenda Item 5
o There is overlap between the objectives of communityAppueﬂ'deaRd the
Retrofit Strategic Action Plan which can be mobilised for joint activity

6.6.8.2. Approach: Retrofit Market Development role uses information from action 2.1F to develop
forum, acts as secretariat for forum, develops draft terms and conditions, approved by
Interim Steering Group and forum membership

6.6.8.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development role
o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations
6.6.8.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1F
6.6.8.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3
o Weaknesses: 9, 13
o Opportunities: 2, 7
o Threats: 1,5, 6, 10, 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, community organisations, health

6.6.9. Action 2.1 H: Create Community Engagement/ Resident Liaison Officer role or allocate to

existing
6.6.9.1. Context/ Assumptions:
o Engaging with households directly and with community organisations can
improve outcomes
o Resource is needed to maximise the opportunities of direct and community-level
engagement
6.6.9.2. Approach: Backbone organisation to develop job description, agree with Interim Steering
Group, consult with stakeholders, and agree whether role will be recruited to or allocated
to existing.
6.6.9.3. Resources:
o Money: c. £40k
o Role(s): Backbone organisation
o Stakeholder(s): All
6.6.9.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1G
6.6.9.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 3

o Weaknesses: 3,9, 13

Page 81



Agenda Item 5
Opportunities: 2,7, 11 Appendlx 2

Threats: 1

Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, local authorities, community
organisations, health, social landlords

6.6.10. Action 2.1 I: Develop and deliver retrofit engagement events with community organisations

6.6.10.1.

6.6.10.2.

6.6.10.3.

6.6.10.4.

6.6.10.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o

Community organisations have levels of trust with residents that can be
mobilised for the promotion of and engagement with retrofit measures

Many people lack trust and confidence in retrofit measures and schemes to
deliver measures

By delivering events with trusted partners within communities we can develop
interest and engagement with retrofit

Approach: Community Engagement role works with Research & Data, Retrofit Market
Development roles and community organisations to develop plan based on best practice,
plan agreed with Interim Steering Group and implemented.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Community Engagement, Research & Data, Retrofit Market
Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, community organisations
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1F

Strategic fit:

o

o

Strengths: 1, 2, 3,6,7,11
Weaknesses: 3,9, 13
Opportunities: 2,5, 7, 11
Threats: 1, 12

Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, private landlords, local authorities,
community organisations, health

6.6.11. Action 2.1 J: Develop a neighbourhood-scale and/or grassroots retrofit initiative, engaging

and empowering communities to develop suitable retrofit schemes

6.6.11.1.

Context/ Assumptions:

o

Emerging research on benefits of taking a ‘place-based’ approach to delivering
retrofit schemes

Place-based not yet a clearly defined term but incorporates taking a hyper-local,
systems approach and meeting communities where they are with a strong focus
on empowering households

Page 82



Agenda Item 5
o Assumes a place-based approach can deliver better ouﬁppendlx 2

o Surrey’s pilot Neighbourhood Area Committees (NACs) could provide a test bed
for such an initiative and/or form a key part of the Plan's delivery framework,
particularly around progress tracking and engagement efforts.

6.6.11.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Market Development
role to consult with stakeholders on pilot approach, agree proposal with Interim Steering
Group and then stakeholders prior to implementation.

6.6.11.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Research & Data, Retrofit Market Development and Community
Engagement roles

o Stakeholder(s): Community (energy) organisations, health, local authorities,
private landlords, social landlords, supply chain, training providers

6.6.11.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1G, 2.1H, 2.1l
6.6.11.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3,8,9,12,13,18
o Weaknesses: 2, 13
o Opportunities: 2,5, 11
o Threats: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, community (energy) organisations,
health, local authorities, private landlords, social landlords, supply chain

6.7. Sub-goal 2.1.1: Build confidence in households facing lower barriers

6.7.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 1,2,3,4,6,7,10,11
o Weaknesses: 5, 6
o Opportunities: 2, 7, 10, 15

o Threats: 1,5,6,11

6.7.2. Action 2.1.1 A: Create Retrofit Facilitation Provider/ Specialist Support Service for self-
funded sector

6.7.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o There exists a market within Surrey for specialist technical assistance for
homeowners, providing impartial, expert assessment, procurement, design
project management, and/or evaluation services, independent of installers.

o This market can help develop the business to consumer, micro to SME element
of the supply chain which is critical to widespread take up of measures.

Page 83



6.7.2.2.

6.7.2.3.

6.7.2.4.

6.7.2.5.

Agenda Item 5
o Surrey’s pilot of such a service in 2024/2025 can be opﬁ(p)f@@ﬂ(dls)(a@d.

Approach: Research & Data role to research best practice and current service provision,
Retrofit Market Development role to prepare options paper and consult with stakeholders,
then proposal put forward to Interim Steering Group for approval and implementation.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Community (energy) organisations, local authorities, supply chain
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1A
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 3,9, 10,11, 14
o Weaknesses: 2,3,5,6,9, 13,14
o Opportunities: 5, 15
o Threats: 3,5, 10, 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, community (energy) organisations, local
authorities, private landlords, supply chain

6.7.3. Action 2.1.1 B: Determine touchpoints for self-funded sector and develop plan to leverage

for retrofit action

6.7.3.1.

6.7.3.2.

6.7.3.3.

6.7.3.4.

6.7.3.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o There are touchpoints, such as buying a house, installing a kitchen, receiving
council tax reminders, which could be utilised as trigger points to deliver
engagement/action

o Key stakeholders involved at such touchpoints can be mobilised to promote
simultaneous retrofit planning

Approach: Research & Data role to research best practice and determine touch points in
local system, Retrofit Market Development to develop mobilisation plan with stakeholders
and agree plan with Interim Steering Group, then implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development roles

o Stakeholder(s): Community organisations, health, local authorities, private
landlords, social landlords, supply chain

Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1A
Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 7,9

Page 84



Agenda Item 5
o Weaknesses: 8, 14 Appendlx 2

o Opportunities: 5, 10
o Threats: 5, 6, 10, 11, 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, community (energy) organisations, health,
local authorities, private landlords, supply chain

6.7.4. Action 2.1.1 C: Implement new and/or develop existing collective buying scheme to reduce
cost of installation

6.7.4.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o By aggregating demand for retrofit measures cost savings in delivery can be
found

o Service providers, such as Solar Together, are available to deliver
o Quality assurance can be delivered through collective buying schemes

6.7.4.2. Approach: Retrofit Market Development role to determine service providers and develop
options paper for consultation with stakeholders, then agree final plan with Interim
Steering Group and implement.

6.7.4.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Market Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Community (energy) organisations, local authorities, private
landlords, social landlords, supply chain

6.7.4.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 2.1A
6.7.4.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 1,2

o Threats:12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, community (energy) organisations, local
authorities, private landlords, social landlords, supply chain

6.8. Sub-goal 2.1.2: Build confidence in households facing higher barriers

6.8.1.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths:3,4,6,7, 11
o Weaknesses: 5, 6, 13
o Opportunities: 2,7, 8,9, 10, 15

o Threats: 1,6,11

Page 85



Agenda Item 5
6.8.2. Action 2.1.2 A: Map local authority officers already engaging housel’ﬂ@@ﬁﬂ]ﬂh%lap plan

to increase retrofit awareness
6.8.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Several local authority services have an overlap with retrofit such as
environmental health, building control and planning

o Engagement with these services could lead to opportunities to engage service
users in retrofit and deliver better outcomes

o Officers will be interested in engaging when benefits can be determined

6.8.2.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine services, Retrofit Market Development
officer to determine benefits for each service, then consult with services to develop
mobilisation plan, agree with Interim Steering Group and implement.

6.8.2.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities
6.8.2.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 2.1A
6.8.2.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 8,9, 11, 13
o Weaknesses: 1,2, 3,9
o Opportunities: 2,4, 8,9, 17
o Threats: 8,9

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, public health, local authorities,
private landlords

6.8.3. Action 2.1.2 B: Develop plan for councils and community groups to work together to reach
low-income households

6.8.3.1. Context/ Assumptions:
o Both councils and community groups are engaging with low-income households
o By working together better outcomes can be achieved

o Low-income households can take up retrofit measures, in combination with
grants schemes

6.8.3.2. Approach: Community Engagement Role to engage with relevant council departments and
community groups to develop joint initiatives and ways of working, develop and agree plan
with Interim Steering Group and implement.

6.8.3.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Community Engagement

Page 86



6.8.3.4.

6.8.3.5.

Links:

o

o

Agenda Item 5

Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, comﬂpp,e:ﬁ’gari)(aﬁons, local
authorities

Pre-action(s): 2.1G, 2.1H, 2.1l

Strategic fit:

o

o

Strengths: 3, 13
Weaknesses: 1, 2, 3, 13
Opportunities: 7
Threats:1, 8, 9

Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, private landlords, social landlords,
local authorities, community (energy) organisations, health

6.8.4. Action 2.1.2 C: Simplify householder journey for fuel poor sector grant schemes, e.g. via a

centralised service

6.8.4.1.

6.8.4.2.

6.8.4.3.

6.8.4.4.

6.8.4.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o

A ‘managing agent’ function contracts with and manages suppliers of services
(assessment, procurement, design, project management, evaluation) or may
have in-house team, taking on responsibility for delivery of overall specification

Risks related to managing agent models can be effectively managed

Alternative delivery/business models may prove more cost-effective or have a
better risk profile

Surrey’s LAs (as the Surrey Consortium) currently host a managing agent
function in-house within SCC for some schemes (e.g. WHLG) and contract
external agents for others (e.g. ECO4 Flex).

Approach: Research & Data role to review best practice, Retrofit Market Development and
Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles to develop options paper and consult with
stakeholders and Interim Steering Group to recommend any changes to existing model.

Resources:

Links:

o

o

o

Money: To be determined

Role(s): Research & Data, Retrofit Supply Chain Development and Retrofit
Market Development roles

Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, local authorities, social
landlords, supply chain

Pre-action(s): 2.1A

Strategic fit:

o

o

o

Strengths: 8, 9,12, 13, 18
Weaknesses: 1, 2, 3

Opportunities: 2, 3,4,6, 8,9, 14, 16
Page 87



Agenda Item 5
o Threats: 8,9 Appendlx 2

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, private landlords, social landlords,
local authorities, community (energy) organisations, health, supply chain

6.9. Sub-goal 3.1: Enable households who are facing lower barriers to access finance to
undertake retrofit
6.9.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 3,4,7,10, 11
o Weaknesses: 8
o Opportunities: 5, 15

o Threats: 12

6.9.2. Action 3.1 A: Create Retrofit Finance role or allocate to existing
6.9.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Resource is needed to help develop and deliver actions to increase the
availability of finance for retrofit measures

o Interventions can be made which help to support growth in financial measures

o The provision of finance will increase take up of retrofit measures

6.9.2.2. Approach: Backbone organisation to develop job description, agree with Interim Steering
Group, consult with stakeholders, and agree whether role will be recruited to or allocated
to existing.

6.9.2.3. Resources:

o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Backbone organisation
o Stakeholder(s): All
6.9.2.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): None
6.9.2.5. Strategic fit:
o Weaknesses: 8
o Opportunities: 5
o Threats: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Private landlords, social landlords, local authorities,
community (energy) organisations, supply chain

6.9.3. Action 3.1 B: Develop attractive finance offers under trusted brand

6.9.3.1. Context/ Assumptions:
Page 88



6.9.3.2.

6.9.3.3.

6.9.3.4.

6.9.3.5.

Agenda Item 5
o Attractive financial offers such as a revolving low intere@tp:p&d‘dldeb(e Zr energy
as a service can be developed and deliver beneficial outcomes

o Interventions can be made which help to support growth in financial measures
o The provision of finance will increase take up of retrofit measures

Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Finance role to expand
to incorporate current service provision, develop business case for review by the Interim
Steering Group before wider consultation and agreement on delivery plan.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Finance roles

o Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, finance providers, local
authorities, social landlords

Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2C, 3.1A, 2.1C, 3.2E
Strategic fit:

o Weaknesses: 8

o Opportunities: 5

o Threats: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, private landlords, social landlords, local
authorities, community (energy) organisations

6.9.4. Action 3.1 C: Deliver retrofit finance advice via General Support Service

6.9.4.1.

6.9.4.2.

6.9.4.3.

6.9.4.4.

6.9.4.5.

Context/ Assumptions:
o The provision of finance will increase take up of retrofit measures

o Finance advice can be a regulated matter and therefore requires careful
consideration

Approach: Retrofit Finance role to determine levels of finance advice which can be
provided and will increase take up of retrofit measures, consult with stakeholders on
options and then agree implementation plan with Interim Steering Group.

Resources:

o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Retrofit Finance role

o Stakeholder(s): Finance experts, local authorities
Links:

o Pre-action(s): 2.1D, 3.1A
Strategic fit:

o Weaknesses: 8

Page 89



Agenda Item 5
o Opportunities: 5 Appendlx 2

o Threats: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, private landlords, local authorities,
community (energy) organisations

6.10. Sub-goal 3.2: Improve access to funded schemes for households facing higher
barriers
6.10.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 3,6,11,12, 16
o Weaknesses: 4,9, 13,14
o Opportunities: 7, 8, 19

o Threats: 1, 10, 11, 12

6.10.2. Action 3.2 A: Conduct stakeholder assessment of local authorities involved in ECO LA Flex
and understand each local authority strategy

6.10.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Energy Company Obligation Local Authority Flex (ECO LA Flex) scheme is often
under utilised

o ECO LA Flex can support delivery of retrofit measures

6.10.2.2. Approach: Research & Data role and Grant Scheme Support & Coordination to conduct
stakeholder assessment and determine current provision and report to Interim Steering
Group on findings.

6.10.2.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Grant Scheme Support & Coordination roles
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, local authorities
6.10.2.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.1A, 1.1B, 1.2C
6.10.2.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 12,13, 18
o Weaknesses: 1, 2, 3, 10
o Opportunities: 8

o Direct beneficiaries: Local authorities, supply chain

Page 90



Agenda Item 5

6.10.3. Action 3.2 B: Agree minimum level of service for delivery of ECO LA v%ppm@%xoa local
authorities in meeting minimum

6.10.3.1.

6.10.3.2.

6.10.3.3.

6.10.3.4.

6.10.3.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Energy Company Obligation Local Authority Flex (ECO LA Flex) scheme is often
under utilised

o ECO LA Flex can support delivery of retrofit measures
o Best practice is available for replication
o Local authorities can be supported in improving strategies

Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Grant Scheme Support &
Coordination to develop options for improving services in consultation with stakeholders,
review and agree improvement plan with Interim Steering Group.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Grant Scheme Support & Coordination roles
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, local authorities
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.1A, 1.2C, 3.2A
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 12,13, 18
o Weaknesses: 1, 2, 3,10
o Opportunities: 8, 17

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, private landlords, local authorities,
supply chain

6.10.4. Action 3.2 C: Engage Energy Company Obligation providers as a consortium to simplify

customer journey

6.10.4.1.

6.10.4.2.

6.10.4.3.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Energy Company Obligation (ECO) grant scheme is often underutilised, and this
could be rectified by greater levels of coordination and collaboration

o Lead generation is often an area of difficulty for ECO providers with local
stakeholders often better suited to this activity

o There are often ‘rogue traders’ operating under the ECO term, confusing
homeowners and creating distrust

o ECO providers will benefit from coordinated local activity

Approach: Grant Scheme Support & Coordination role to consult with local authorities and
social landlords on current provision and develop improvement plan with ECO providers for
approval by Interim Steering Group and then implementation.

Resources:

Page 91



Agenda Item 5
o Money: To be determined Appendlx 2

o Role(s): Grant Scheme Support & Coordination role

o Stakeholder(s): Energy providers, local authorities, social landlords, supply chain
6.10.4.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.1A
6.10.4.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 12,13, 18

o Weaknesses: 1,2, 3,9, 10

o Opportunities: 8

o Threats: 10, 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, private landlords, social landlords,
local authorities, supply chain, energy companies

6.10.5. Action 3.2 D: Engage with grant commissioning organisations to determine plan to maximise
benefits from Warm Homes Local/Social Housing grant schemes

6.10.5.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Government’s Warm Homes grant schemes offer opportunity for improving
outcomes through coordination and collaboration

o Coordination and collaboration can offer benefits for all stakeholders involved
and be delivered under terms of funding agreements

o Best practice available to be replicated/learnt from

o There is still time to develop plans within current funding agreement periods and
project stage

6.10.5.2. Approach: Grant Scheme Support & Coordination role to determine who has secured
funding and gather information on plans, develop options for collaborative and
coordinative working, consult with stakeholders on options and agree plan with Interim
Steering Group.

6.10.5.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Grant Scheme Support & Coordination role
o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, social landlords
6.10.5.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.1A, 1.1B
6.10.5.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 8, 12,13, 18
o Weaknesses: 1, 2,3

o Opportunities: 6, 8

Page 92



Agenda Item 5
o Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, private IanApp&ﬁ(ﬂjMa@lords,
local authorities, supply chain

6.10.6. Action 3.2 E: Engage with social/private landlords to determine financial barriers in delivery
of retrofit and develop rectification plan

6.10.6.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Lack of finance could be holding back social and private landlords from investing
in retrofit measures

o Suitable financial offers could be developed and utilised by landlords

6.10.6.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Market Development
role and Retrofit Finance role to consult with private and social landlords on financial
barriers, develop rectification plan with stakeholders, secure Interim Steering Group
approval and implement.

6.10.6.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Research & Data role and Retrofit Market Development role and Retrofit
Finance Role

o Stakeholder(s): Finance providers, private landlords, social landlords
6.10.6.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2C, 2.1A, 2.1E, 3.1A, 3.2D
6.10.6.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 13, 18

o Direct beneficiaries: Tenants, private landlords, social landlords, local authorities

6.10.7. Action 3.2 F: Develop and deliver a social prescribing scheme with GPs and health partners
6.10.7.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Retrofit can deliver health benefits and therefore can support health
practitioners in improving the lives of patients

o By using health service touch points, engagement with - and use of - retrofit
measures can be increased

6.10.7.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Market Development
role to consult with stakeholders on potential for utilising health service touch points,
develop options paper and agree way forward with stakeholders and then Interim Steering
Group.

6.10.7.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Market Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Health, local authorities

6.10.7.4. Links:
Page 93



6.10.7.5.

o

Agenda Item 5
Pre-action(s): 1.2C, 1.3E, 2.1A AppendIX 2

Strategic fit:

o

o

Strengths: 12

Weaknesses:13

Opportunities: 2, 4,5, 7, 8, 15,17, 19
Threats: 12

Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, tenants, social landlords, local authorities,
community (energy) organisation, health partners

6.11. Sub-goal 4.1: Support and grow our local supply chain and skills base through

sector collaboration

6.11.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):

o

o

Strengths: 1, 2, 5,9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 18
Weaknesses: 2,4, 7
Opportunities: 5, 6, 8,9, 12, 15, 17

Threats: 2, 5, 10

6.11.2. Action 4.1 A: Create a forum(s) for training providers and supply chain to share learning and

best practice, explore skills needs and inform training provision

6.11.2.1.

6.11.2.2.

6.11.2.3.

6.11.2.4.

6.11.2.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o

Communication between training providers and the supply chain could be
improved

By facilitating the exchange of information and learning, better outcomes can be
delivered for all

Strengthening existing forums such as the Surrey GSAP can ensure employers’
current and future skills needs are heard and inform training provision

Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to engage with training providers and
supply chain, determine needs and develop model to realise improvement jointly, produce
business case for Interim Steering Group approval and implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain Development role
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, training providers
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A
Strategic fit:

Page 94



Agenda Item 5
o Strengths: 5,9, 11 Appendlx 2

o Weaknesses: 4,7
o Opportunities: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, training providers

6.11.3. Action 4.1 B: Develop plan to promote retrofit careers and support both new entrants and

those re-skilling, with a focus on diversifying the workforce

6.11.3.1.

6.11.3.2.

6.11.3.3.

6.11.3.4.

6.11.3.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Low take-up of retrofit training courses, combined with insufficient
understanding of the barriers preventing participation, an ageing workforce, and
a lack of diversity in the workforce in terms of gender, ethnicity, and disability
will create capacity issues as retrofit demand increases, and will hinder
engagement with retrofit from Surrey’s diverse communities.

o Work is needed to start engaging younger people. Engaging careers services and
coordinating retrofit careers promotional activity could help.

o Employability programmes, i.e. structured initiatives designed to help individuals
improve their job readiness and secure employment, could help to engage
underrepresented groups, including providing support via advice, information,
and bursaries

Approach: Research & Data role to explore best practice for improving take-up of retrofit
courses and diversity of supply chain, including a review of employability programmes and
a review of Gemserv’s retrofit skills roadmap analysis conducted for Surrey County Council.
Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to conduct stakeholder assessment of local
career’s advice services, map out existing processes, determine improvements, consult
with stakeholders on potential improvements and a delivery plan, then present to Interim
Steering Group for approval and implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, supply chain, training providers
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C, 4.1A
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 5,9, 11
o Weaknesses: 4, 7
o Opportunities: 5, 17
o Threats: 10

o Direct beneficiaries: Jobseekers, students, training providers, supply chain, local
authorities

Page 95



Agenda Item 5

6.11.4. Action 4.1 C: Create Retrofit Installer ‘community of practice’ (SME f&p{)&iﬂﬁﬁ&—%—peer
learning, upskilling, mentoring and general support

6.11.4.1.

6.11.4.2.

6.11.4.3.

6.11.4.4.

6.11.4.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o To develop capacity and quality within the installer sector, there needs to be
provision of support and upskilling

o Although currently only a small amount of demand for such a service, this can be
nurtured and grown as demand increases and enables quicker development of a
more sustainable sector

o Assumes best practice is available for replication

Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to engage with installers interested in
retrofit and consult on support needed, develop plan, present to Interim Steering Group
and implement.

Resources:

o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, supply chain, training providers
Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 4.1A
Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 5,9, 11

o Weaknesses: 4, 7

o Opportunities: 15

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, local authorities, training providers, business
support organisations

6.11.5. Action 4.1 D: Provide on-site training through local authority/social landlord commissioned
works, as part of funded retrofit programmes via social value

6.11.5.1.

6.11.5.2.

6.11.5.3.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Local authorities and social landlords will be commissioning retrofit works as
part of grant-funded programmes, and these provide important learning
opportunities

o Utilisation of these learning opportunities can be done without having a
detrimental effect on delivery

o On-site learning opportunities can provide important skill development and
sector engagement benefits

Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice nationally, Retrofit Supply
Chain Development role to engage with local authorities, social landlords and training
providers and consult on potential activities, agree plan and then review and approve with
Interim Steering Group prior to implementation.

Resources:

Page 96



Agenda Item 5
o Money: To be determined Appendlx 2

o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, social landlords, training providers
6.11.5.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C, 4.1.1E
6.11.5.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 9, 18

o Weaknesses: 7, 10

o Opportunities: 1, 9, 15

o Direct beneficiaries: Jobseekers, students, training providers, supply chain, local
authorities, social landlords

6.11.6. Action 4.1 E: Develop an investment vehicle to channel private investment into local training
6.11.6.1. Context/ Assumptions:
o Training sector lacks adequate funding

o Manufacturers could be a source of investment whilst benefiting from
promotion, sales and sector development

6.11.6.2. Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to engage with manufacturers to
determine potential, then consult with training providers and develop pilot projects for
approval by the Interim Steering Group and then implementation.

6.11.6.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain Development role
o Stakeholder(s): Training providers, supply chain
6.11.6.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A
6.11.6.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 9
o Weaknesses: 4, 7

o Direct beneficiaries: Students, training providers, supply chain

6.12. Sub-goal 4.1.1: Support & grow local supply chain
6.12.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):
o Strengths: 1, 2,9, 10,11, 13, 18

o Opportunities: 5, 6, 8,9
Page 97



Agenda Item 5
o Threats: 10 Appendlx 2

6.12.2. Action 4.1.1 A: Develop a coordinated Surrey procurement approach that benefits local
supply chain, particularly SMEs

6.12.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Public procurement approaches are not maximising use of the local supply chain
and small/medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)

o Meanwhile, local authorities and social landlords may need to procure the same
services at similar times which can create sub-optimal outcomes through lack of
supply chain capacity to respond to tenders and/or deliver contracts

o Assumes greater use of the local supply chain would provide better outcomes
and approaches can be developed which enable an increase in use whilst
complying with public sector procurement regulations

o Assumes joint procurements or coordination of procurements between
commissioners could deliver better outcomes for all

6.12.2.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine national and regional best practice, Retrofit
Supply Chain Development role to conduct stakeholder engagement with procurement
departments, develop forum of officers, consult with local supply chain to determine
barriers, co-develop improvement plan with stakeholders, review and approve with Interim
Steering Group and implement.

6.12.2.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, social landlords, supply chain
6.12.2.4. Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C
6.12.2.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 9, 13,18
o Weaknesses: 2, 10
o Opportunities: 1,5, 6,9, 17
o Threats: 2, 8,9

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, local authorities, social landlords

6.12.3. Action 4.1.1 B: Develop and deliver SME-friendly social impact standard and processes with
the aim of increasing SME involvement in contract delivery

6.12.3.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Social impact/value can deliver increases in SME usage but effectiveness and
enforcement is patchy across procurement and contract periods

Page 98



6.12.3.2.

6.12.3.3.

6.12.3.4.

6.12.3.5.

Agenda Item 5
o Social impact/value aspects of public procurement carAp@@j‘?ddi)(li@r better
outcomes for commissioners, local SMEs and the system as whole

o Best practice can be replicated

Approach: Research & Data role to determine national best practice and regional strategies
around social impact, Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to conduct stakeholder
assessment of procurement departments, develop forum of officers, consult with local
supply chain to determine barriers, co-develop improvement plan with stakeholders,
review and approve with Interim Steering Group and implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, social landlords, supply chain
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 9, 13, 18
o Weaknesses: 2
o Opportunities: 1,5, 6,9, 17
o Threats: 2,9

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, local authorities, social landlords

6.12.4. Action 4.1.1 C: Boost regular and consistent comms with supply chain including ‘meet the

buyer’ events

6.12.4.1.

6.12.4.2.

6.12.4.3.

6.12.4.4.

Context/ Assumptions:
o Often the local supply chain isn’t aware of opportunities

o Assumes engagement and awareness-raising activities can be carried out in line
with public sector procurement regulations

Approach: The Retrofit Supply Chain Development role holder will work with procurement
officers to establish processes for identifying upcoming procurements. They will then lead
activities to disseminate information, consult with supply chain, develop a coordinated
plan, present to and seek approval from the Interim Steering Group and implement the
actions.

Resources:

o Money: c. £4,000 - £8,000 per annum

o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles

o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, social landlords, supply chain
Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2 A, 1.2E, 1.2F, 3.2A, 3.2D, 4.1.1A, 4.1.1B

Page 99



Agenda Item 5
6.12.4.5. Strategic fit: Appendlx 2

o Strengths: 9
o Opportunities: 5, 17

o Direct beneficiaries: Training providers, supply chain, local authorities, social
landlords, business support organisations

6.12.5. Action 4.1.1 D: Collate advice and guidance on accessing start up finance for market
entrants or for SMEs to expand, via Economic Development teams

6.12.5.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Possible to stimulate development of new retrofit businesses or expansion of
existing through provision of finance

o Existing retrofit market could support new entrants and demand activities should
increase the potential

6.12.5.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Supply Chain
Development and Retrofit Finance roles to engage with local authority Economic
Development departments to co-develop options, consult with supply chain, present plan
Interim Steering Group for approval and implement

6.12.5.3. Resources:
o Money: To be determined

o Role(s): Research & Data, Retrofit Supply Chain Development and Retrofit
Finance roles

o Stakeholder(s): Local authorities, supply chain
6.12.5.4. Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C, 3.1A
6.12.5.5. Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 9

o Opportunities: 5,9

o Direct beneficiaries: Supply chain, local authorities, business support orgs

6.12.6. Action 4.1.1 E: Develop options for a trusted installers network in the self-funded market
6.12.6.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o One of the barriers to getting retrofit done is a perceived lack of trust with
installers by buyers

o Levels of knowledge within the installer network vary and quality can be an issue

o Aservice could be developed which can give homeowners reassurance over a
particular installer

o Risks can be managed effectively for the network holder, homeowner and
installer

Page 100



o

Agenda Item 5
Some installers do cross over from fuel poor grants maAF)pela(ﬂleXs ﬂay
require mentoring if desire is to support SMEs to grow and to join up whole
supply chain

6.12.6.2. Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Supply Chain
Development role to consult with stakeholders on findings and develop options paper for
Interim Steering Group.

6.12.6.3. Resources:

O
@)

o

6.12.6.4. Links:

o

Money: To be determined
Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development role

Stakeholder(s): Community energy organisations, local authorities, social
landlords, supply chain

Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C

6.12.6.5. Strategic fit:

o

o

Strengths: 9
Opportunities: 5

Direct beneficiaries: Homeowners, private landlords, supply chain, local
authorities, community (energy) organisations

6.13. Sub-goal 4.1.2: Support and improve local skills base

6.13.1. Strategic fit (across all goal actions):

o

o

Strengths: 5, 14
Weaknesses: 4, 7
Opportunities: 12

Threats: 2

6.13.2. Action 4.1.2 A: Develop plan with industry to support colleges by creating 'end of career'

pathway to 'give back' via trainer roles.

6.13.2.1. Context/ Assumptions:

o Training providers struggle to recruit tutors to deliver retrofit courses and keep
up to speed with industry practices
o Due to the physical nature of retrofit work, some tradespeople can no longer do
— or prefer to move away from — installation work but could transition to work as
tutors in training providers and share valuable learnings
6.13.2.2. Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to consult with training providers on

current processes, determine improvement actions, consult with supply chain, develop
plan, present to Interim Steering Group for approval and implement.

6.13.2.3. Resources:

Page 101



6.13.2.4.

6.13.2.5.

Agenda Item 5
o Money: To be determined Appendlx 2

o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain Development role

o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, training providers
Links:

o Pre-action(s): 1.2A
Strategic fit:

o Strengths: 5

o Weaknesses: 7

o Opportunities: 5

o Threats: 5

o Direct beneficiaries: Training providers, supply chain

6.13.3. Action 4.1.2 B: Conduct review of local retrofit training provision including early stage

retrofit content/modules in general construction courses.

6.13.3.1.

6.13.3.2.

6.13.3.3.

6.13.3.4.

6.13.3.5.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Possible that construction and plumbing courses could be improved through
greater incorporation of retrofit and building physics knowledge to achieve
better outcomes.

Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, including review of Gemserv’s
study for Surrey County Council, Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to consult with
training providers and supply chain and co-develop improvement plan, present to Interim
Steering Group for approval and implement

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, training providers
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C, 4.1E
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 5,14
o Weaknesses: 4, 7
o Opportunities: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Students, training providers, supply chain, local authorities

6.13.4. Action 4.1.2 C: Conduct review and then develop business case for funding/ investment in

facilities, equipment, and staff recruitment, training and retention for delivery of courses.

6.13.4.1.

Context/ Assumptions:

Page 102



6.13.4.2.

6.13.4.3.

6.13.4.4.

6.13.4.5.

Agenda Item 5

o To deliver sufficient capacity and quality in the supply Appgﬂﬂilxnﬁastment
is needed in training provision

o Funding and investment options can be found to deliver better training provision

Approach: Retrofit Supply Chain Development role to build on improvement plan produced
by action 4.1.2D to co-develop business case for investment with stakeholders, secure
approval from Interim Steering Group and work to secure investment.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, training providers
Links:
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 4.1.2C, 4.1.2D
Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 5,14
o Weaknesses: 4, 7
o Opportunities: 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Students, training providers, supply chain

6.13.5. Action 4.1.2 D: Develop and deliver activities to support take up of apprenticeships (e.g.

promo campaigns, shared-apprenticeship pilots, grants for SMEs etc)

6.13.5.1.

6.13.5.2.

6.13.5.3.

6.13.5.4.

Context/ Assumptions:

o Future demand is expected to increase and therefore work needs to be done to
start engaging new entrants in retrofit jobs, so they are ready to work when
demand increases

o Apprenticeships are a good way to engage new entrants in retrofit careers and
can provide good learning outcomes

o Training providers and employers are available to work with apprentices

o Supply chain can find apprenticeships difficult, particularly for smaller
organisations, and therefore need support to ensure take up

Approach: Research & Data role to determine best practice, Retrofit Supply Chain
Development role to consult with training providers and supply chain on barriers to use of
apprentices, develop improvement plan, present to Interim Steering Group for approval
and implement.

Resources:
o Money: To be determined
o Role(s): Research & Data and Retrofit Supply Chain Development roles
o Stakeholder(s): Supply chain, training providers

Links:

Page 103



Agenda Item 5
o Pre-action(s): 1.2A, 1.2C, 4.1A, 4.1.1D Appendix 2

6.13.5.5. Strategic fit:
o Strengths: 5,14
o Weaknesses: 4,7
o Opportunities: 5, 12

o Direct beneficiaries: Jobseekers, students, training providers, supply chain

7. Appendix

7.1. 1. MEAL Framework

]

LARA MEAL
Guidance.pdf

Page 104



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Alternative Transport Councillor Champion Annual Statement 2025/26
	Transport Champion Statement

	5 Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan
	Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan Appendix 1
	Surrey Retrofit Strategic Action Plan Appendices Appendix 2


